
July 2, 2013  CITY COUNCIL AGENDA   6:00 p.m. 

To assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City services, please provide 24-hour advance 
notice to the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539 for additional arrangements to reasonably accommodate special needs. 

1. CALL TO ORDER
Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance

HONORS AND RECOGNITIONS
 Help House Christmas in July Proclamation

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD

4. CONSENT AGENDA
a. Minutes of the Regular City Council meeting held June 18, 2013
b. Approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers in the amount of $641,289.25, consisting of Nos.

154606 through 154752
c. Introduction of Ordinance 1662 Relating to the Oak Harbor Youth Commission
d. Motion to Accept the Proposal from HarborSUP for the Marina Recreational Equipment Rent-

al Operations,subject to an agreement  providing for the terms of service
e. Motion to authorize the Mayor to sign an Interlocal Agreement with Island County Regarding

Law Enforcement Partnerships Grant
f. Motion to set City Council Workshop Meetings for July 24, 2013; August 28, 2013; and Sep-

tember 25, 2013, at 3:00 – 5:30 p.m.

5. STAFF AND COUNCIL COMMENTS
a. City Administrator
b. Councilmembers
c. Mayor

6. ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS
a. Resolution 13-14: Authorizing 2% Lodging Tax Funds to the North Whidbey Lions Club Car

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS/PUBLIC MEETINGS
a. Ordinance 1660:  Amending Title 17 of the OHMC to Adopt the 2012 International Building

Codes with Specific Provisions Applicable to the City of Oak Harbor
b. Ordinance 1661:  Amending Title 8 of the OHMC to Adopt the 2012 International Fire Codes

with Specific Provisions Applicable to the City of Oak Harbor

8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS



 
July 2, 2013                                     CITY COUNCIL AGENDA                                         6:00 p.m. 
 

To assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City services, please provide 24-hour advance  
notice to the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539 for additional arrangements to reasonably accommodate special needs. 

 

 
 9. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Resolution 13-16: Terminating Efforts to Replace the Marina C-Dock Roof 
b. Motion to authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 1 to the Professional Services Agree-

ment with Hedeen & Caditz, PLLC, increasing the contract from $20,000 to $28,640  
c. Motion to authorize the Mayor to sign the Consultant Agreement with Gray & Osborne, Inc. for 

design of the North Booster Station and North Transmission Main Projects in an amount not 
to exceed $964,100 

d. Motion to authorize the Mayor to sign a Letter of Engagement with Ogden, Murphy & Wallace 
for Legal Services 

e. Executive Session –  Pending Litigation, Labor Negotiations 
 
 
 10. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
As a courtesy to Council and the audience, PLEASE TURN YOUR CELL PHONES OFF before the meeting begins. 
During the meeting’s Public Comments section, Council will listen to your input regarding subjects of concern or 
interest that are not on the agenda. 
 
For scheduled public hearings, if you wish to speak, please sign your name to the sign-up sheet, located in the 
Council Chambers. The Council will take all information under advisement. To ensure your comments are recorded 
properly, state your name and address clearly into the microphone.  Please limit your comments to three minutes in 
order that other citizens have sufficient time to speak. 
 

Thank you for participating in your City Government! 





Regular Meeting Minutes – June 18, 2013 – Page 1  

Oak Harbor City Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

June 18, 2013 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Scott Dudley called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m. 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INVOCATION 

 
Mayor Dudley led the Pledge of Allegiance, and Pastor Randy Beumer of Oak Harbor Christian 
Church gave the invocation. 

 
ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Staff Present: 
Mayor Scott Dudley City Administrator Larry Cort 
Mayor Pro Tempore Danny Paggao Finance Director Doug Merriman 
Councilmember Rick Almberg                              Development Service Director Steve Powers 
Councilmember Jim Campbell                              Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
Councilmember Tara Hizon                                  Interim City Attorney Grant Weed 
Councilmember Joel Servatius                             City Clerk Valerie J. Loffler 
Councilmember Bob Severns Chief of Police Ed Green 

Fire Chief Ray Merrill 
 
Councilmember Beth Munns was excused. 

 
PRESENTATIONS OF OTHER NON-ACTION ITEMS 

 
Recognition of Don Mowat 
Parks Manager Hank Nydam presented Don Mowat of Blue Mountain Electric with an engraved 
plaque recognizing his donation of labor and materials on numerous electrical projects for the 
City of Oak Harbor. Mr. Mowat introduced his family and members of his team who volunteer 
their time and expertise. 

 
Councilmembers expressed their appreciation for his generosity. 

 
At 6:13 p.m. Mayor Dudley announced a recess to allow Council time to congratulate Mr. 
Mowat. The meeting reconvened at 6:16 p.m. 

 
Proclamation Recognizing 100 Years of the Neil Barn 
Councilmember Severns was joined at the podium by Oak Harbor Boys and Girls Club Director 
Nikki Barone and Program Assistant Micaiah Davis as he read the proclamation recognizing the 
100th anniversary of the Neil Barn. Ms. Barone invited everyone to join the celebration at the 
Open Skate on June 22nd from 1:00 p.m. to 3:00 pm. 

 
 

 
 
 



Regular Meeting Minutes – June 18, 2013 – Page 2  

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion: Councilmember Servatius moved to approve the Agenda with the removal of Item 6.a., 

Gray & Osborne Consultant Agreement for the North Booster Station and Water 
Transmission Line Projects; and the addition of Item 5.d., Ordinance 1663, Suspend- 
ing Standing Committee meetings. The motion was seconded by Councilmember 
Severns and carried unanimously. 

 
CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD 

 
Tim Geist voiced concern about alcohol in city parks. Mr. Geist requested to know who generat- 
ed the idea and what law enforcement issues were expected. 

 
Jim Kiesel also expressed his concern about alcohol in city parks. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
City Clerk Valerie J. Loffler read the Consent Agenda. 

 
a. Minutes of the Regular City Council meeting held June 4, 2013 
b. Motion to approve the accounts payable vouchers in the amount of $1,585.99, consisting 

of Nos. 154401 through 154406; and $311.81, consisting of Nos. 154407 through 154411; 
and $681,449.75, consisting of Nos. 154412 through 154605 

c. Motion to award the operation of food concessions at the Oak Harbor Marina to Orlando’s 
Fish and Grill 

d. Motion to appoint Dr. Pampeyan to the Marina Advisory Committee to fill an unexpired 
term ending December 2014 

e. Motion to appoint John Pendleton to the Arts Commission for a four-year term to expire on 
June 2017 

f. Motion to approve the extension of the Public Defense Service Agreement with Matthew 
Montoya for a full caseload of indigent defense cases 

g. Motion to approve the extension of the Public Defense Service Agreement with Georgina 
Sierra for a partial caseload of indigent defense cases 

h. Motion to authorize the purchase and installation of a drainage system for Ft. Nugent Park 
through the City’s interlocal purchasing agreement with KCDA in an amount not to exceed 
$80,000.00 

i. Introduction of Ordinances 1660 Relating to the Fire Code; and Ordinance 1661 Relating 
to the Building Code (July 2, 2013) 

 
Motion: Councilmember Hizon moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  The mo- 

tion was seconded by Councilmember Campbell and carried unanimously. 
 

HEARINGS AND ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS 
 
Ordinance 1658:  Refunding 2004 Water/Sewer Bonds 
Finance Director Doug Merriman provided the staff report and stated this is a continuation of the 
public hearing. Mr. Merriman introduced Annette Sommers from Foster Pepper who provided 
information on the bond market. 

 
Ms. Sommers responded to questions from Councilmembers about the par amount of the 
bonds, the City’s credit rating, and the closing date. 



Regular Meeting Minutes – June 18, 2013 – Page 3  

Ordinance 1658: An Ordinance of the City of Oak Harbor, Washington, relating to con- 
tracting indebtedness; providing for the issuance, sale and delivery of 
not to exceed $[1,645,000] aggregate principal amount of water and 
sewer revenue refunding bonds to provide funds to advance re- fund 
the callable portion of the City’s Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, 
2004, and to pay the administrative costs of such refunding and the 
costs of issuance and sale of the bonds; fixing or setting pa- rameters 
with respect to certain terms and covenants of the bonds; appointing 
the City’s designated representative to approve the final terms of the 
sale of the bonds; and providing for other related mat- ters 

 
No testimony was provided and the hearing closed at 6:36 p.m. 

 
Motion: Councilmember Servatius moved to adopt Ordinance 1658.  The motion was second- 

ed by Councilmember Almberg and carried unanimously. 
 
Resolution 13-13:  Adopting the Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program 
City Engineer Joe Stowell provided the staff report. 

 
Councilmembers and Mr. Stowell discussed project order and funding. 

 
Mayor Dudley opened the public hearing at 6:46 p.m.  No testimony was provided and the hear- 
ing was closed. 

 
Resolution 13-13: A Resolution of the City of Oak Harbor Adopting the 2014-2019 Six- 

Year Transportation Program 
 
Motion: Councilmember Hizon moved to adopt Resolution 13-13.  The motion was seconded 

by Councilmember Campbell and carried unanimously. 
 
Resolution 13-06:  Establishing a Policy for Invocations 
City Administrator Dr. Larry Cort provided the staff report stating the Lancaster decision was 
considered and the revised resolution conforms to the Ninth Circuit decision. 

 
William Potilla read a statement in opposition. Also speaking in opposition were Tom Smith and 
Billie Cook. 

 
Tim Geist spoke in support. 

 
Councilmembers spoke in support and discussed the process for establishing a list. 

 
Resolution 13-06: A Resolution of the City of Oak Harbor Establishing a Written Policy 

for the Presentation of Invocations at City Council Meetings 
 
Motion: Councilmember Servatius moved to adopt Resolution 13-06.  The motion was second- 

ed by Councilmember Paggao and carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
Ordinance 1663:  Relating to Standing Committees and Workshop Meetings 



Regular Meeting Minutes – June 18, 2013 – Page 4  

City Administrator Dr. Larry Cort provided the staff report. 
 

Billie Cook requested time during workshop meetings for public comment. 
 
Councilmembers Servatius, Paggao, Almberg, and Severns spoke in support of workshop meet- 
ings in lieu of standing committee meetings. 

 
Ordinance 1663: An Ordinance of the City of Oak Harbor, Washington, Amending Ordi- 

nance No. 1656 Suspending the Regular Meetings of City Council 
Standing Committees Established Under OHMC 1.04.015, Authorizing 
Special City Council Workshop Meetings; and Providing for Sunset of 
this Ordinance 

 
Motion: Councilmember Hizon moved to adopt Ordinance 1663.  The motion was seconded 

by Councilmember Servatius and carried unanimously. 
 
At 7:31 p.m. Mayor Scott Dudley announced a recess. 

The meeting reconvened at 7:37 p.m. 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Council Initiated Agenda Item 
Finance Director Doug Merriman reported that at the June 4th meeting Councilmember Almberg 
moved to consider on June 18th a motion to defer the implementation of 2% cost of living ad- 
justment and termination of the opt-out provision for non-represented employees from July 1, 
2013, to January 1, 2014. 

 
Councilmember Hizon spoke in support stating she’s received communication from employees 
expressing concern over losing their opt-out benefit. 

 
Councilmember Severns also received input from employees. He stated this issue is part of the 
bigger package and more time is needed to make a decision. 

 
Councilmember Almberg reiterated that his motion relates to only non-represented employees 
and shouldn’t affect any current bargaining negotiations. He also stated the existing package is 
not sustainable and the impacts of the deferral are budget neutral. 

 
Finance Director Doug Merriman confirmed a budget adjustment would be necessary. 

 
Further, Councilmember Almberg stated his goal is to be fair to the employees and citizens. He 
wants to finish the discussion started at the March Workshop meeting to see what it does to the 
bottom line. 

 
Councilmembers Paggao, Campbell, and Servatius also spoke in support of the motion. 

 
Motion:   Councilmember Almberg moved to defer the implementation of employees’ 2% cost 

of living adjustment (COLA) and termination of the opt-out provision for non- 
represented employees from July 1, 2013, to January 1, 2014. The motion was se- 
conded by Councilmember Paggao and carried unanimously. 



Regular Meeting Minutes – June 18, 2013 – Page 5  

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
At 7:54 p.m. Mayor Dudley announced an executive session of approximately 20 minutes to 
discuss pending litigation. No action would be taken during the executive session. 

 
The meeting reconvened at 8:18 p.m. 

 
Motion: Councilmember Campbell moved to authorize the Mayor to sign the Settlement and 

Release Agreement with Richard and Rhonda Wallace with reference to Island County 
Superior Court Cause No. 12-2-01004-2, Wallace v. City of Oak Harbor. The motion 
was seconded by Councilmember Servatius and carried unanimously. 

 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR COMMENTS 

 
City Administrator Dr. Larry Cort reported that he’ll be attending the Association of Washington 
Cities Annual Conference in Richland next week with Mayor Dudley and Councilmembers 
Munns, Hizon, and Servatius. 

 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMENTS 

 
Councilmember Hizon reported she brought forward the suggestion for alcohol in the parks. She 
clarified it would be for only special occasions, which amount to 3 or 4 each year. 

 
MAYOR COMMENTS 

 
Mayor Dudley reported the new gallery of photographs in the Council Chambers is a collection 
provided by Artist Bethany Popkes. 

 
Mayor Dudley, commenting on the decision to defer the opt-out and 2% cost of living increase, 
stated he would have liked to see a councilmember recuse himself due to a conflict of interest. 

 
Motion: Councilmember Almberg moved to allow Councilmember Severns to respond to the 

Mayor’s comments. The motion was seconded by Councilmember Hizon and carried 
unanimously. 

 
Councilmember Severns remarked the Mayor should have been aware of his pre-nuptial 
agreement that addresses potential conflicts of interest (because his wife is a City employee). 

 
Mayor Dudley argued the appearance of a conflict. 

 
Councilmember Paggao declared there is no conflict of interest based on the information he re- 
ceived. He stated the Mayor chastised Council for not getting the vote he wanted. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Motion: Councilmember Almberg moved, seconded by Councilmember Paggao, to adjourn 

the meeting. The motion carried unanimously. 
 

The meeting adjourned at 8:29 p.m. 
 

 
Valerie J. Loffler, City Clerk 



 

 

Bill No. C/A 4.b.  
Date:      July 2, 2013  
Subject: Approval of Accounts Payable   
    Vouchers   
 

FROM:  Doug Merriman, Finance Director 
  
INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY: 
 
            Scott Dudley, Mayor 
            Larry Cort, City Administrator 
            Grant Weed, Interim City Attorney, as to form 
 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT 

 
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 
provided prior to the City Council meeting for appropriate Council signatures. 
 
AUTHORITY  

 

Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION  
 
Motion to approve the accounts payable vouchers in the amount of $641,289.25, consisting of Nos. 154606 
through 154752. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

Voucher Lists 
 
 

 

City of Oak Harbor 
City Council Agenda Bill 



06/26/2013
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
1

 2:08:45PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 154606 6/13/2013 0004903  US BANK 4485591000119689 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  1,228.87
Total :  1,228.87

 154607 6/13/2013 0004903  US BANK 4485591000119689 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  2,276.02
Total :  2,276.02

 154608 6/17/2013 0003066  FISH AND WILDLIFE, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF061713 JARPA PERMIT FEE  150.00
Total :  150.00

 154609 6/19/2013 0001639  WASHINGTON CITIES INSURANCE 061713 CLAIM #GC037980  9,250.00
Total :  9,250.00

 154610 6/21/2013 0007126  QUALITY INN 062113 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/HIZON  272.49
Total :  272.49

 154611 6/21/2013 0007126  QUALITY INN 062113A HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/SERVATIUS  272.49
Total :  272.49

 154612 6/25/2013 0007141  FREEDOM PROPERTIES, LLC 062513 PURCHASE OPTION  10,000.00
Total :  10,000.00

 154613 6/25/2013 0007141  FREEDOM PROPERTIES, LLC 060113 JUNE 2013/RENTAL  2,500.00
Total :  2,500.00

 154614 6/25/2013 0007141  FREEDOM PROPERTIES, LLC 070113 JUL 2013/RENTAL  2,500.00
Total :  2,500.00

 154615 6/26/2013 0000028  ALL ISLAND LOCK & KEY 22360 KEYS  54.35
Total :  54.35

 154616 6/26/2013 0000029  ALL PHASE ELECTRIC SUPPLY 0952-659564 TUBE  185.39
Total :  185.39

 154617 6/26/2013 0001609  ALL QUALITY STITCHES 224 CAPS  139.14
 156.53CAPS225
 52.18CAPS234

 521.76SHIRTS235

1Page:



06/26/2013
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
2

 2:08:45PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 154617 6/26/2013 (Continued)0001609  ALL QUALITY STITCHES
 722.86SHIRTS236

Total :  1,592.47

 154618 6/26/2013 0000033  ALPINE PRODUCTS, INC TM-132607 PAINT  3,152.38
Total :  3,152.38

 154619 6/26/2013 0000041  AMERICAN FUNDS SERVICE COMPANY 061313 2012/VOLUNTEER INCENTIVE PROGRAM  405.00
Total :  405.00

 154620 6/26/2013 0002044  ANACORTES.NET/HOW IT WORKS 33031 JUN 2013/WEB HOSTING  75.00
Total :  75.00

 154621 6/26/2013 0000046  APPLIED INDUSTRIAL 7000633189 DODGE P2BSXV104  132.05
Total :  132.05

 154622 6/26/2013 0000053  ARROW PEST CONTROL, INC 147785 PEST CONTROL  108.70
Total :  108.70

 154623 6/26/2013 0004019  ASSOCIATED PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 0430866-IN FUEL  36,490.36
 18,244.92FUEL0439242-IN
 4,935.35FUEL0443857-IN

-36,490.36FUEL430866C-IN
 34,505.39FUEL430866R-IN

Total :  57,685.66

 154624 6/26/2013 0000068  BANKERS ADVERTISING COMPANY 610459 PENS  285.59
Total :  285.59

 154625 6/26/2013 0005804  BIDDIX TRUCKING SCHOOL, LLC 430 REGISTRATION  2,263.00
Total :  2,263.00

 154626 6/26/2013 0001435  BISCH, PAT 1 TRAVEL REFUND  22.00
Total :  22.00

 154627 6/26/2013 0000103  BLADE CHEVROLET, INC 474232 MAY 2013/VEHICLE RENTAL  600.00
Total :  600.00

2Page:



06/26/2013
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
3

 2:08:45PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 154628 6/26/2013 0004631  BLAKE, KAY 1 TRAVEL REFUND  35.00
Total :  35.00

 154629 6/26/2013 0004917  BLATTMAN, ENA KAY 1 TRAVEL REFUND  22.00
Total :  22.00

 154630 6/26/2013 0000109  BLUMENTHAL UNIFORMS 3886 PANTS/GREEN  195.55
 141.30BOOTS/HAT/WILKIE6842
 43.15CAP6842-01

 831.56VEST/SILVEIRA996915
 831.56VEST/BRAUNSTEIN996926
 54.34PANTS/CARTER997031-80
-54.34PANTS/CARTER997031-81

Total :  2,043.12

 154631 6/26/2013 0000112  BOB BARKER COMPANY, INC WEB000271068 JAIL SUPPLIES  163.78
Total :  163.78

 154632 6/26/2013 0004642  BRAINARD, JENNIFER 07 MUNICIPAL COURT PRO TEM  566.84
Total :  566.84

 154633 6/26/2013 0006349  BRANNAN, LAURAINE 1 TRAVEL REFUND  47.00
 47.00TRAVEL REFUND1

Total :  94.00

 154634 6/26/2013 0006769  BRAUN CONSULTING GROUP 1650 MAY 2013/RETAINER  2,650.00
Total :  2,650.00

 154635 6/26/2013 0000137  BRIM TRACTOR COMPANY IM66701 RADIATOR/CAP/HOSE  1,825.49
Total :  1,825.49

 154636 6/26/2013 0000131  BROADVIEW APPLIANCE 32003 DRYER REPAIR  114.08
Total :  114.08

 154637 6/26/2013 0003953  BULL, GRANT 061313 2012/VOLUNTEER INCENTIVE PROGRAM  30.24
Total :  30.24

 154638 6/26/2013 0005027  BURT'S SAW & MOWER K4199313 ENGINE REPAIR  40.00

3Page:



06/26/2013
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
4

 2:08:45PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  40.00 154638 6/26/2013 0005027 0005027  BURT'S SAW & MOWER

 154639 6/26/2013 0002644  C JOHNSON CONSTRUCTION, INC 3719 TOIPSOIL  540.78
 9,457.20PROF SVC/FORT NUGENT PARK PICNIC SHELTER4

Total :  9,997.98

 154640 6/26/2013 0004587  CAMCAL, INC 25075 GREASE PUMP  655.43
Total :  655.43

 154641 6/26/2013 0000627  CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 113938165211 SUPPLIES  806.86
Total :  806.86

 154642 6/26/2013 0005777  CARROLL, ANDREW 061313 2012/VOLUNTEER INCENTIVE PROGRAM  62.10
Total :  62.10

 154643 6/26/2013 0000153  CASCADE COLUMBIA DISTRIBUTION 592853 SODIUM FLUORIDE  2,278.61
Total :  2,278.61

 154644 6/26/2013 0007143  CASTILLO, KITTY 1 TRAVEL REFUND  35.00
Total :  35.00

 154645 6/26/2013 0000160  CENTRAL WELDING SUPPLY AN20173 POWERMIG  772.55
Total :  772.55

 154646 6/26/2013 0005896  CHING, CONOR 061313 2012/VOLUNTEER INCENTIVE PROGRAM  50.58
Total :  50.58

 154647 6/26/2013 0000179  CLERKS PETTY CASH 062113 PETTY CASH  110.00
Total :  110.00

 154648 6/26/2013 0003005  COAST WENATCHEE CENTER HOTEL 14136 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/ENGLE  295.32
Total :  295.32

 154649 6/26/2013 0004520  COASTAL WEAR PRODUCTS 4117 POLY BROOM HD  703.30
Total :  703.30

 154650 6/26/2013 0001433  COLE, DONNA 1 TRAVEL REFUND  140.00
Total :  140.00

4Page:



06/26/2013
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
5

 2:08:45PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 154651 6/26/2013 0005773  COMCAST 062013 OVERPAYMENT ON INVOICE #ENG-2013-04COM  674.48
 12.26XFINITY8498300270032028

 207.56INTERNET CHARGES8498300290363841
Total :  894.30

 154652 6/26/2013 0003125  COMMERCE, DEPARTMENT OF PWTF-153004 SR 20 QUITE COVE WATER TRANSMISSION MAIN 30,348.58
 24,474.94TROXELLPWTF-93040

Total :  54,823.52

 154653 6/26/2013 0000197  CONCRETE NORWEST 883343 DUMP TRUCK RENTAL  10,812.93
Total :  10,812.93

 154654 6/26/2013 0000211  CREDIT BUREAU OF ISLAND COUNTY 062413 COLLECTION FEE/32-376000-03 BAXTER, LUKE  58.59
Total :  58.59

 154655 6/26/2013 0000222  CUSTOM ENGRAVING 13-92 PINS  489.15
Total :  489.15

 154656 6/26/2013 0006650  DRAKE, DARLENE 1 TRAVEL REFUND  22.00
Total :  22.00

 154657 6/26/2013 0000273  EDGE ANALYTICAL, INC 13-09807 TESTING SERVICES  63.00
 18.00TESTING SERVICES13-10391

Total :  81.00

 154658 6/26/2013 0006747  EQUINOX RESEARCH & CONSULTING 12-430-11 PROF SVC/PIT ROAD ARCHAEOLOGICAL RECOVER 249,413.72
Total :  249,413.72

 154659 6/26/2013 0006276  EXPRESS SERVICES, INC 12560175-7 OFFICE SERVICE SUPPORT  1,164.48
Total :  1,164.48

 154660 6/26/2013 0002900  FASTENAL WAOAK14355 HIGH ALLOY/HCS/USS  6.02
 61.79CABLE TIEWAOAK14420

Total :  67.81

 154661 6/26/2013 0000956  FINANCE OFFICERS, WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF1247954-56927954 REGISTRATION/STEVENS  65.00
 65.00REGISTRATION/BOYER1247954-56928127

5Page:



06/26/2013
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
6

 2:08:45PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  130.00 154661 6/26/2013 0000956 0000956  FINANCE OFFICERS, WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF

 154662 6/26/2013 0006093  FRAZIER SURVEYING, LLC 67 STAKING  2,295.00
Total :  2,295.00

 154663 6/26/2013 0000355  FRONTIER 279-0841 CURRENT PHONE CHARGES  65.73
 53.57CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-1060
 58.75CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-1669
 35.37CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-5190
 53.42CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-2530

 182.59CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-5551
Total :  449.43

 154664 6/26/2013 0000326  FRONTIER BUILDING SUPPLY 78856 SPRUCE  10.17
 40.44CEDAR78961
 39.22CEDAR78962
 39.80SEAL79106

Total :  129.63

 154665 6/26/2013 0000325  FRONTIER FORD 95431 RIVET/ACTUATOR  59.96
Total :  59.96

 154666 6/26/2013 0002072  GILES, JOYCE 1 TRAVEL REFUND  22.00
Total :  22.00

 154667 6/26/2013 0007142  GLASS, ALICIA 061313 KEY DEPOSIT REFUND  5.00
Total :  5.00

 154668 6/26/2013 0004974  GREEN LIGHT SOLUTIONS 8230 MAINTENANCE & INSPECTIONS  940.00
Total :  940.00

 154669 6/26/2013 0006848  HAMPTON, BARBARA 1 TRAVEL REFUND  25.00
Total :  25.00

 154670 6/26/2013 0000323  HD FOWLER COMPANY I3392077 NOZZLE/ROTAOTRS/ROTORS  418.82
 309.80ROTATORI3393970

Total :  728.62

6Page:



06/26/2013
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
7

 2:08:45PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 154671 6/26/2013 0005679  HEISERMAN, JEFF 061313 2012/VOLUNTEER INCENTIVE PROGRAM  137.70
Total :  137.70

 154672 6/26/2013 0000388  HOFKAMP, RONALD L EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  171.39
Total :  171.39

 154673 6/26/2013 0005942  HOLCOMB, SHANNON 061313 2012/VOLUNTEER INCENTIVE PROGRAM  176.40
Total :  176.40

 154674 6/26/2013 0005250  HONEYMOON BAY COFFEE ROASTERS 696848 COFFEE SUPPLIES  145.75
Total :  145.75

 154675 6/26/2013 0001910  HUGHES, BETTY 1 TRAVEL REFUND  35.00
 22.00TRAVEL REFUND1

Total :  57.00

 154676 6/26/2013 0005872  IMPAIRED DRIVING IMPACT PANEL 061013 DUI/UNDERAGE DRINKING PREVENTION PANEL  166.67
Total :  166.67

 154677 6/26/2013 0000417  INDUSTRIAL BOLT & SUPPLY 538152-1 BOLTS/ORINGS/PINS/STUDS/CONNECTORS  290.74
Total :  290.74

 154678 6/26/2013 0001469  INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL INV0289996 IBC SOFT/IFC COMMENTARY  226.05
Total :  226.05

 154679 6/26/2013 0006008  INTOXIMETERS, INC 393243 MOUTHPIECES  5,517.07
Total :  5,517.07

 154680 6/26/2013 0000411  ISLAND COUNTY TREASURER 11 2ND QTR 2013/MUNICIPAL COURT RENT  4,300.00
Total :  4,300.00

 154681 6/26/2013 0000433  ISLAND DRUG 136044 INMATE MEDS  20.83
Total :  20.83

 154682 6/26/2013 0006148  JANSEN, DWAYNE 061313 2012/VOLUNTEER INCENTIVE PROGRAM  84.42
Total :  84.42

 154683 6/26/2013 0007042  JONES, PATTY 1 TRAVEL REFUND  22.00

7Page:



06/26/2013
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
8

 2:08:45PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  22.00 154683 6/26/2013 0007042 0007042  JONES, PATTY

 154684 6/26/2013 0006362  KBA, INC 3001191 PROF SVC/OAK HARBOR NORTH RESERVOIR PROJ 20,197.02
Total :  20,197.02

 154685 6/26/2013 0000476  KERR, JACK 05-13 MAY 2013/PUBLIC DEFENSE SCREENING  1,400.00
 1,400.00JUN 2013/PUBLIC DEFENSE SCREENING06-13

Total :  2,800.00

 154686 6/26/2013 0005628  KESSLER, ROSE 1 TRAVEL REFUND  20.00
 44.00TRAVEL REFUND1

Total :  64.00

 154687 6/26/2013 0006620  KOETJE INSURANCE 39872 NOTARY/HOBERT  75.00
Total :  75.00

 154688 6/26/2013 0006899  LANGE, RYAN 061313 2012/VOLUNTEER INCENTIVE PROGRAM  97.42
Total :  97.42

 154689 6/26/2013 0000889  LANGUAGE EXCHANGE 08 MUNICIPAL COURT INTERPRETER  570.00
 190.00MUNICIPAL COURT INTERPRETER09

Total :  760.00

 154690 6/26/2013 0000979  LES SCHWAB 41400066558 TIRES  1,084.97
Total :  1,084.97

 154691 6/26/2013 0000515  LOGGERS & CONTRACTORS, INC 00058765 FITTINGS  128.55
 43.31ADAPTER00058766

Total :  171.86

 154692 6/26/2013 0001909  LONG, JAY 1 DRIVING SERVICES  132.00
Total :  132.00

 154693 6/26/2013 0000522  LUEHR, TOM 1 DRIVING SERVICES  102.00
 84.00DRIVING SERVICES1

Total :  186.00

 154694 6/26/2013 0002449  LUNDGREN, KATHLEEN 1 TRAVEL REFUND  35.00

8Page:



06/26/2013
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
9

 2:08:45PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 154694 6/26/2013 (Continued)0002449  LUNDGREN, KATHLEEN
 35.00TRAVEL REFUND1

Total :  70.00

 154695 6/26/2013 0000530  MAILLIARD'S LANDING NURSERY 71574 SOIL  57.01
Total :  57.01

 154696 6/26/2013 0000660  MARKET PLACE FOOD & DRUG 708122 GROCERIES  771.87
Total :  771.87

 154697 6/26/2013 0004163  MARTINSON, SANDY 1 TRAVEL REFUND  22.00
Total :  22.00

 154698 6/26/2013 0002291  MCYOUNG, MARY 1 TRAVEL REFUND  15.00
Total :  15.00

 154699 6/26/2013 0007144  MILL CREEK, CITY OF 0091228 REGISTRATION/SEIM  40.00
Total :  40.00

 154700 6/26/2013 0005445  MONTOYA, MATTHEW J 93 JUN 2013/PUBLIC DEFENSE  5,500.00
Total :  5,500.00

 154701 6/26/2013 0004423  MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES 00035270_SCN FREIGHT ADJUSTMENT -11.62
 72.52SWEATSHIRT00414181_SNV

 166.32CYLINDER00418583_SNV
 11.62FREIGHT ADJUSTMENT00420901_SNV

Total :  238.84

 154702 6/26/2013 0000612  NELSON PETROLEUM 0498804-in FUEL  39.37
Total :  39.37

 154703 6/26/2013 0000610  NORTH CENTRAL LABORATORIES 322437 BOD SEED/MAGNESIUM/POTASSIUM  490.91
Total :  490.91

 154704 6/26/2013 0000633  NORTH SOUND BUSINESS SYSTEMS 9114 TONER  189.14
Total :  189.14

 154705 6/26/2013 0006486  NORTHWEST LININGS & GEOTEXTILE 0047472-in WOVEN W/GROMMETS  1,182.60

9Page:



06/26/2013
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
10

 2:08:45PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  1,182.60 154705 6/26/2013 0006486 0006486  NORTHWEST LININGS & GEOTEXTILE

 154706 6/26/2013 0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE 221709 PLUMBING SUPPLIES  0.53
 10.67COUPLE/CEMENT222838
 18.47SCREWDRIVER223144
 6.51CAULK223147
 8.77TIRE GAUGE/CHAIN223153
 1.82EYE/HARDWARE223175

 11.94BLADES223201
 28.13OIL/PLUMBING SUPPLIES223252
 4.34INSERT223264

 19.54FASTENERS223265
 19.33FASTENERS223302
 1.62KEY223327

 19.73DECKSL/BRUSH223330
 35.84FOAM/VALVE REPAIR/SIPHON REPAIR223358
 15.20SCREWDRIVER/DRILL BIT223396
 3.79SHOWER RING223438

 16.28FEED-N-WAX/SPRAYPAINT223452
 154.14WHEELS223453
 23.44COUPLES223512
 30.94CONNECTOR/FITTINGS223513
 3.26TIE223515

 11.80ELECTRICAL WIRE/FITTING223567
 7.91GLUE/CAULK223586

 18.07BELT/BOLT/PLUG223609
 3.58CAULK223708

 35.66PAIL/PAINTBRUSHES/STRAINER223720
 35.00FASTENERS223735
 8.76PULL/CONN223736

 10.86BIT223748
 7.61GROMMETS223842

 48.90TORCH KIT223852
Total :  622.44

 154707 6/26/2013 0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER 001-169313 FILTERS  18.51
 8.59ELECTRICAL PROD001-169650

10Page:



06/26/2013
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
11

 2:08:45PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 154707 6/26/2013 (Continued)0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER
 91.05FILTERS001-169674
 7.60FILTERS001-169675

 75.55FILTERS001-169814
 21.81ELECTRICAL PROD/HITCH001-170282
 73.11BLOWER MOTOR001-170292
 47.96FILTERS001-170375
 8.08FILTERS001-170522

Total :  352.26

 154708 6/26/2013 0000681  OAK HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 0000120694 JUN 2013/COMPUTER NETWORK SUPPORT  6,708.33
Total :  6,708.33

 154709 6/26/2013 0003007  OFFICE DEPOT 660762555001 LABELS  62.61
 543.49PRINTER661302375001

Total :  606.10

 154710 6/26/2013 0001377  ORCA INFORMATION 326333 PRE-EMPLOYMENT  75.00
 75.00PRE-EMPLOYMENT326334
 30.00PRE-EMPLOYMENT326807

Total :  180.00

 154711 6/26/2013 0007146  OXFORD SUITES SPOKANE VALLEY 55276 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/CARTER  491.55
Total :  491.55

 154712 6/26/2013 0000698  P & L GENERAL CONTRACTORS 2874 TRAILER RENTAL  217.40
Total :  217.40

 154713 6/26/2013 0005867  PACIFIC POWER BATTERIES 16073502 BATTERIES  245.72
Total :  245.72

 154714 6/26/2013 0003164  PAINTERS ALLEY 20735 PAINT  818.66
 68.40PAINT20742

Total :  887.06

 154715 6/26/2013 0000709  PERS 00992052 MAY 2013/UNFUNDED LIABILITY  26.98
Total :  26.98

11Page:



06/26/2013
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
12

 2:08:45PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 154716 6/26/2013 0000724  PONY MAILING & BUSINESS CENTER 209953 SHIPPING  7.55
Total :  7.55

 154717 6/26/2013 0000746  PUGET SAFETY EQUIPMENT 0013473-IN GLOVES  338.49
Total :  338.49

 154718 6/26/2013 0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY 200000136776 ELECTRICITY/1301 SE CATALINA DRIVE  34.80
 2,854.62ELECTRICITY/DISPLT200000881421

 9.71ELECTRICITY/WINDMILL200000919684
 1,996.97ELECTRICITY/CITY SHOP200000947859

 11.79ELECTRICITY/BATHROOMS200001097589
 14.04ELECTRICITY/1888 NE 5TH AVENUE200001884218
 9.66ELECTRICITY/180 PIT ROAD200002035950

 147.08ELECTRICITY/30505 ST ROUTE 20200002036164
 54.49ELECTRICITY/34777 STATE ROUTE 20 SIGN200002036719

 136.94ELECTRICITY/CITY BEACH PARK200002036917
 17.09ELECTRICITY/2000 SW SCENIC HEIGHTS ST200002037097
 10.29ELECTRICITY/1780 SW SPRINGFIELD COURT200002037261
 74.21ELECTRICITY/3285 SW SCENIC HEIGHTS ST200002037501
 9.71ELECTRICITY/552 NW CLIPPER DRIVE200002170617

 27.59ELECTRICITY/2075 SW FT200002511539
 146.70ELECTRICITY/CMFTST200002723381
 17.82ELECTRICITY/1000 SE IRELAND STREET200003267636

 120.56ELECTRICITY/1957 FORT NUGENT ROAD200003459654
 9.84ELECTRICITY/650 NE 7TH AVE200004342099

 97.54ELECTRICITY/800 SE MIDWAY BLVD200004562878
 9.71ELECTRICITY/1577 NW 8TH AVENUE200004856627
 9.71ELECTRICITY/SMITH PARK200005263310

 14.29ELECTRICITY/KITCHEN200005461666
 28.71ELECTRICITY/NEIL PK & HOLLAND GARDENS200005643446

 5,164.21ELECTRICITY/700 SE PIONEER WAY200005933094
 12.04ELECTRICITY/5941 STATE ROUTE 20200006103952

 157.94ELECTRICITY/SW ERIE ST SW BARRINGTON DR200007268135
 120.65ELECTRICITY/700 AVE W & MIDWAY200007702943

 9.71ELECTRICITY/75 SE JEROME STREET200007824192
 10.24ELECTRICITY/FABER ST & HARVEST DR200008386993
 13.34ELECTRICITY/ANNEX200008816189

12Page:



06/26/2013
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
13

 2:08:45PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 154718 6/26/2013 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY
 31.35ELECTRICITY/2330 SW ROSARIO PLACE200010322895
 22.96ELECTRICITY/1000 SE CITY BEACH ST200010499065
 98.80ELECTRICITY/1948 NW CROSBY AVE200010499248
 21.07ELECTRICITY/1661 NE 16TH AVE200010499446
 58.09ELECTRICITY/651 SE BAYSHORE DRIVE200010530240
 10.29ELECTRICITY/PARK200010530802

 152.78ELECTRICITY/940 SE PIONEER WAY200010531024
 10.24ELECTRICITY/1300 NE BIG BERRY LOOP200010531172

 120.29ELECTRICITY/CABI200010531354
 91.55ELECTRICITY/800 SE DOCK STREET200010531941

 101.94ELECTRICITY/BALLPARK200010699706
 767.90ELECTRICITY/SR 20 & 650 AV W200011316839
 12.25ELECTRICITY/ADULT CARE CENTER200011551930
 33.16ELECTRICITY/285 SE JEROME STREET200011579964
 9.66ELECTRICITY/128 E WHIDBEY AVE200012220337

 1,181.56ELECTRICITY/FIRE STATION200012278087
 2,631.74ELECTRICITY/TREATMENT PLANT200012425357

 15.39ELECTRICITY/PIONEER PARK200012838765
 2,180.93ELECTRICITY/MARINA200013370750

 209.04ELECTRICITY/672 CHRISTIAN ROAD200013734963
 114.94ELECTRICITY/1540 SE PIONEER WAY200013968405
 61.47ELECTRICITY/1370 SE DOCK STREET200014151886

 262.04ELECTRICITY/700 AV W & 80 NW200014366534
 796.62ELECTRICITY/CITY HALL200014596478

 9.66ELECTRICITY/1678 SW 8TH AVE200015399153
 104.96ELECTRICITY/600 NE 7TH AVENUE200015618321
 65.27ELECTRICITY/287 SE CABOT DR200015685833

 304.93ELECTRICITY/690 SW HELLER ROAD200017255619
 1,235.17ELECTRICITY/CITY BEACH PARK200017441482

 83.89ELECTRICITY/1367 NW CROSBY AVE200017575347
 67.59ELECTRICITY/3300 OLD GOLDIE ROAD200017653656

 154.91ELECTRICITY/1000 SW THORNBERRY DR200017654415
 10.98ELECTRICITY/2081 NE 9TH AVENUE200017853025

 1,423.57ELECTRICITY/POLICE STATION200017968427
 39.04ELECTRICITY/90 SE PIONEER WAY200019043344
 47.13ELECTRICITY/1137 NW KATHLEEN DRIVE200019500517

13Page:



06/26/2013
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
14

 2:08:45PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 154718 6/26/2013 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY
 18.62ELECTRICITY/626 CHRISTIAN ROAD200020179194

 543.39ELECTRICITY/SENIOR CENTER200020235012
 13.30ELECTRICITY/KITCHEN200020308330
 33.56ELECTRICITY/980 SW MCCROHAN STREET200022441113
 23.27ELECTRICITY/945 E WHIDBEY AVE #B200023231067
 47.59ELECTRICITY/700 W HELLER ROAD200023360569
 31.08ELECTRICITY/1285 NE TAFTSON ST200024715845

 172.84ELECTRICITY/33500 STATE ROUTE 20200025075157
 24,039.70ELECTRICITY/STREET LIGHTS300000007421

 48.17ELECTRICITY/PARKS300000009906
 58.04ELECTRICITY/PARKS300000010409

 196.06ELECTRICITY/INTERSECTION OF MIDWAY & NE300000010458
 128.81ELECTRICITY/900 SE MIDWAY BLVD300000010516
 167.06ELECTRIC SERVICE/1000 SE CITY BEACH STRE400000130080

Total :  49,416.65

 154719 6/26/2013 0000960  REVENUE, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 060613 MAY 2013/EXCISE USE TAX  47,480.13
Total :  47,480.13

 154720 6/26/2013 0000770  ROBERTS, JON 061313 2012/VOLUNTEER INCENTIVE PROGRAM  54.00
Total :  54.00

 154721 6/26/2013 0004486  SCHAAL, PHYLLIS 1 TRAVEL REFUND  22.00
Total :  22.00

 154722 6/26/2013 0000796  SCHROER, PAUL 061313 2012/VOLUNTEER INCENTIVE PROGRAM  250.20
Total :  250.20

 154723 6/26/2013 0000809  SENIOR SERVICES OF ISLAND OH05-2013 MAY 2013/SENIOR SERVICES  1,500.00
Total :  1,500.00

 154724 6/26/2013 0000816  SHELL FLEET PLUS 065163545306 FUEL  23.89
Total :  23.89

 154725 6/26/2013 0005444  SIERRA, GEORGINA D 062413 JUN 2013/PUBLIC DEFENSE  2,500.00
Total :  2,500.00

14Page:



06/26/2013
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
15

 2:08:45PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 154726 6/26/2013 0000831  SIX ROBBLEES', INC 136121 SAFARI  359.05
Total :  359.05

 154727 6/26/2013 0000814  SKAGIT FARMERS SUPPLY 301302 SPREADER/CULTIVATOR  108.67
 108.69ROUNDUP301775
 53.77PROPANE304543
 14.12FENCE POST304595

Total :  285.25

 154728 6/26/2013 0000853  SKAGIT RIVER STEEL & RECYCLING 32132 TUBE/FLAT BAR  140.74
Total :  140.74

 154729 6/26/2013 0000838  SMITH, TERRY L 10 MUNICIPAL COURT PRO TEM  566.84
Total :  566.84

 154730 6/26/2013 0000846  SOUND PUBLISHING 553773 MAY 2013/PUBLICATIONS-ACCT#80125600  500.23
Total :  500.23

 154731 6/26/2013 0000851  SPRINT 414568819-067 APPARATUS LAPTOPS  508.09
Total :  508.09

 154732 6/26/2013 0000860  STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY 062013 LIFE/POCFF  283.13
Total :  283.13

 154733 6/26/2013 0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 3200676563 HIGHLIGHTERS/SENTENCE STRIPS  19.41
 8.32SENTENCE STRIPS3200676564

 185.42TONER3200676565
 205.93TONER/SPINES3201264717
 158.15SCANNER3201264718
 651.93LCD MONITORS3202004037
 187.46SORTER/UPS3202004038
 40.05WIRELESS MOUSE3202004039
 66.93CHAIRMAT3202004040
 31.50BATTERY DVD CASES3202004042
 40.41FOLDERS3202004043

 431.98SPINKLES/HIGHLIGHTERS/INK/PENS/LABELS3202004044
 37.41HIGHLIGHTERS/SHARPIES3202004045
 62.12PENS/PADS/LABELS3202398585

15Page:



06/26/2013
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
16

 2:08:45PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 154733 6/26/2013 (Continued)0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE
 26.04PENS3202398586
 28.48PENS/MEMO BOOKS3202398587
 39.50SHARPIES/CALCULATOR RIBBONS3202398588

Total :  2,221.04

 154734 6/26/2013 0000863  STERKEL, TIMOTHY EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  15.00
Total :  15.00

 154735 6/26/2013 0003749  STUMP, PATRICK L 1 DRIVING SERVICES  138.00
Total :  138.00

 154736 6/26/2013 0004050  SUMMIT LAW GROUP 62269 PROF SVC  390.00
Total :  390.00

 154737 6/26/2013 0000874  SURETY PEST CONTROL 364854 PEST EXTERMINATION  59.79
Total :  59.79

 154738 6/26/2013 0000923  UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 0000A0182W223 SHIPPING  31.47
 1.01SHIPPING0000A0182W233

 33.11SHIPPING0000A0182W243
Total :  65.59

 154739 6/26/2013 0006156  US POSTAL SERVICE - HASLER 182677 POSTAGE  3,000.00
Total :  3,000.00

 154740 6/26/2013 0005920  VICKERS, JAMES 1 TRAVEL REFUND  35.00
 22.00TRAVEL REFUND1

Total :  57.00

 154741 6/26/2013 0002557  WAGNER, CLIFF 1 TRAVEL REFUND  70.00
Total :  70.00

 154742 6/26/2013 0005651  WASHINGTON CRANE & HOIST, INC 0018744-IN RADIO CONTROL INSTALLATION  6,386.13
Total :  6,386.13

 154743 6/26/2013 0001044  WASHINGTON CRIMINAL JUSTICE 20-1-12383 REGISTRATION/ESPARZA/GRAVEL/POWER-RANG/C 975.00

16Page:



06/26/2013
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
17

 2:08:45PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  975.00 154743 6/26/2013 0001044 0001044  WASHINGTON CRIMINAL JUSTICE

 154744 6/26/2013 0001052  WASHINGTON STATE PATROL I13008901 BACKGROUND CHECKS  10.00
 528.00BACKGROUND CHECKSI13009168

Total :  538.00

 154745 6/26/2013 0006853  WEED, GRAAFSTRA & BENSON, INC, LAW OFFICES OF12 PROF SVC/GENERAL 2013  23,690.13
Total :  23,690.13

 154746 6/26/2013 0003785  WESTGATE RV CENTER 061413 PORTABLE OFFICE RENTAL  1,300.00
Total :  1,300.00

 154747 6/26/2013 0001000  WHIDBEY AUTO PARTS, INC. 178044 FILTERS  86.37
 85.81STEEL/ARG178361

Total :  172.18

 154748 6/26/2013 0001007  WHIDBEY CLEANERS 241013 EMBROIDERY  10.87
Total :  10.87

 154749 6/26/2013 0007140  WHIDBEY FURNITURE 061113 BUSINESS LICENSE OVERPAYMENT REFUND  27.00
Total :  27.00

 154750 6/26/2013 0001005  WHIDBEY GENERAL HOSPITAL 1304000063 INMATE SERVICES  733.55
Total :  733.55

 154751 6/26/2013 0007145  WHIDBEY MEDICAL CLINIC 19517 CLINIC SERVICES  219.00
Total :  219.00

 154752 6/26/2013 0003895  YZAGUIRRE, JENNIFER EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  29.98
Total :  29.98

Bank total :  641,289.25 147 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 641,289.25Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 147

17Page:



City of Oak Harbor 

City Council Agenda Bill 

 

 

 Bill No. C/A 4.c.  
 Date: July 2, 2013    
 Subject:  INTRODUCTION: Code  

Amendment – Oak Harbor   
Youth Commission    

 

FROM: Scott Dudley, Mayor 
  
INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY: 
    Larry Cort, City Administrator 
    Doug Merriman, Finance Director 
    Grant Weed, Interim City Attorney, as to form 
 

PURPOSE 

This agenda bill presents a draft ordinance that amends Oak Harbor Municipal Code Title 2, 
Administration and Personnel, Chapter 250, Oak Harbor Youth Commission, to permit the dismissal of 
a member that has 3 consecutive unexcused absences from regular meetings. 
 
AUTHORITY 
RCW 35A.11 grants cities the authority to regulate their affairs.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION 

Funds Required: N/A 
Appropriation Source: N/A 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT 

The Oak Harbor Municipal Codes does not presently allow for the dismissal of an Oak Harbor Youth 
Commission member that has 3 consecutive unexcused absences from regular meetings.  At the May 7, 
2013 meeting of the Oak Harbor Youth Commission, the members approved such an addition and 
forwarded a letter to Mayor Scott Dudley requesting the change.  In response to that request, Mayor 
Dudley directed staff to prepare an ordinance to incorporate the commission’s proposal.   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Set August 7, 2013 as the public meeting date to consider passage of Ordinance 1662. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Minutes from the Oak Harbor Youth Commission May 7, 2013 Meeting 
2. Letter from Mayor Scott Dudley to the Oak Harbor Youth Commission dated May 16, 2013. 
3. Draft Ordinance Number 1662. 









ORDINANCE NO. 1662 - Page 1 of 2 

ORDINANCE NO. 1662 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR AMENDING SECTION 
2.250.030, “ORGANIZATION” OF THE OAK HARBOR MUNICIPAL CODE 
ADDING ATTENDANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR YOUTH COMMISSION  
MEMBERSHIP 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor is authorized to adopt ordinances for the general welfare of 
its citizens; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor has established the Oak Harbor Youth Commission codified 
as Chapter 2.250 of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code; and 

WHEREAS, Chapter 2.250 of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code provides for the appointment of 
members and Youth Commission organization; and 

WHEREAS, the Youth Commission believes it is desirable to establish an attendance that allows 
for the removal of members who fail to attend three consecutive regular meetings; and 

WHEREAS, on May 7, 2013, the Youth Commission passed a recommendation that the City 
Council amend Section 2.250.030 OHMC to establish this attendance standard; 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR do ordain as 
follows: 

Section One. Oak Harbor Municipal Code Section 2.250.030, last amended by §1 of Ordinance 
No. 1625 in 2012 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

2.250.030 Organization. 

(1) Chairperson. The commission shall elect its own chairperson and secretary. 

(2) Regular Meetings. The commission shall meet at least quarterly. (To the extent reasonably 
possible, the youth service provider community of Oak Harbor will be advised of the meetings 
and topics.) 

(3) Attendance.  Members who fail to attend three (3) consecutive regular meetings may be 
considered to have vacated their position and may be replaced as provided herein.  

(34) Rules of Procedure. The commission shall follow procedures under Chapter 2.65 OHMC 
and may adopt supplemental procedures. (Ord. 1625 § 1, 2012; Ord. 1463 § 5, 2006). 

 

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor02/OakHarbor0265.html#2.65


ORDINANCE NO. 1662 - Page 2 of 2 

Section Two.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person or 
circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the Ordinance or the application of the provision 
to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 

Section Three.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five days after 
publishing. 

PASSED by the City Council this ______ day of ___________________ 2013. 

 CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 
 
 _______________________________ 
 SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 
 
Attest: Approved as to Form: 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Valerie J. Loffler, City Clerk Grant K. Weed, Interim City Attorney 
 
Introduction:  07/02/13 
Adopted:  08/07/13 
Published:  08/10/13 
 



 City of Oak Harbor 

City Council Agenda Bill 

 

July 2, 2013 – Marina Recreational Equipment Operation  

  Bill No. C/A 4.d. 
  Date:  July 2, 2013    

Subject: Marina Recreational Equipment 
Operation 

 
FROM:     Cathy Rosen,  Public Works Director 
 
INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY: 
  _____ Scott Dudley, Mayor 
  _____ Larry Cort, City Administrator 
  _____  Doug Merriman, Finance Director 
 _____ Grant Weed, Interim City Attorney, as to form 
       
 
PURPOSE  
This agenda bill requests City Council to authorize the operation of a recreational equipment vendor at the Oak 
Harbor Marina. 
 
AUTHORITY  
 
OHMC 6.14.090 Selling articles or distributing literature. 
 
It is unlawful to sell refreshments or merchandise, or to distribute literature in any park, without a written 
permit, or a concession contract with the council. (Ord. 214 § 10, 1965). 
 
OHMC 6.14.030 Definitions, section (4)  
 
 “Parks” means all parks and well sites maintained by the city, public squares, park drives, parkways, 
boulevards, bathing beaches, play and recreation grounds owned by or under the jurisdiction of the city, and 
marine facilities. Most but not necessarily all parks as defined herein are identified and described in the 
comprehensive plan as is now in effect or hereafter amended. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION 
 
Funds Required:   N/A     
 
Appropriation Source:  N/A     
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT 
In an effort to provide more amenities at the Oak Harbor Marina, staff is proposing to allow recreational 
equipment operations during the months of July-September of 2013.  The location of the vendor will be the 
grass site south of the boat ramp.  The vendor will be responsible to provide the highest quality and 
dependability of their services.  A monthly lease fee shall be paid to the City for the use of the vendor location 
in the amount of $50.72 per month plus electricity if required.  The vendor will be responsible to abide by all 
safety codes and regulations as set forth by State and Local laws. 
 



 City of Oak Harbor 

City Council Agenda Bill 

 

July 2, 2013 – Marina Recreational Equipment Operation  

Per OHMC 6.14.090, City Council approval is required to allow the sale of concessions in any park.  Per 
OHMC 6.14.030, the Oak Harbor Marina is a “park” and therefore, approval is being requested to ensure 
compliancy with City ordinances.   
 
The request for proposal was advertised in the Daily Journal of Commerce and Whidbey New Times on May 1, 
2013 and May 8, 2013.  No proposals were submitted by the due date of May 17, 2013. 
  
Staff sent out a second call for proposals in the Daily Journal of Commerce and Whidbey New Times on May 
29, 2013 and June 5, 2013.  One proposal was received by the deadline June 14, 2013.   
 
On June 18, 2013, staff met and reviewed the proposal thoroughly and determined that HarborSUP would be a 
welcome addition at the Marina.  They will provide paddle boarding lessons, rentals, tours, and board sales.  
The owner of HarborSUP is certified, licensed and insured.      
 
Therefore, staff is proposing to accept HarborSUP proposal and recommend that they be allowed to operate a 
recreational equipment operation at the Oak Harbor Marina, subject to a vendor agreement providing for the 
terms of service. 
 
STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT 
This item has not been reviewed at the City Council workshop. 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

A motion to accept the proposal and authorize the recreational equipment operation by HarborSUP at the Oak 
Harbor Marina, subject to an agreement providing for the terms of the service. 
 

ATTACHMENTS 
Proposal 
 
 
 
 
 
 

































  

 Bill No. C/A 4.e.  
 Date: July 2, 2013   
 Subject: Interlocal Agreement with Island 

County (Youth Commission) 
 
 
FROM:   Edgar J. Green, Chief of Police  
  
INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY: 
  Scott Dudley, Mayor 
  Larry Cort, City Administrator  
            Doug Merriman, Finance Director 
            Grant Weed, Interim City Attorney, as to form 
 
 
PURPOSE 

 
Approve the Interlocal Agreement between Island County (Youth Commission) and the City of Oak 
Harbor for funding to pay officers overtime while they conduct checks of local liquor establishments 
ensuring they are not selling liquor to minors.   
 

AUTHORITY 

RCW 39.34.080 

Contracts to perform governmental activities which each contracting agency is authorized to  

perform. 

 

Any one or more public agencies may contract with any one or more other public agencies to 
perform any governmental service, activity, or undertaking which each public agency entering 
into the contract is authorized by law to perform: PROVIDED, That such contract shall be 
authorized by the governing body of each party to the contract. Such contract shall set forth fully 
the purposes, powers, rights, objectives, and responsibilities of the contracting parties. 

[1967 c 239 § 9.] 
 
FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION 

None 
  
SUMMARY STATEMENT 
 On January 15, 2013 the Oak Harbor Youth Commission reported to the City Council some of the results 
of their 2010 Healthy Youth Survey. Those results clearly indicated that a thought of “I won’t get in 
trouble/I won’t get caught by the police if drinking” permeated throughout the youth community within 
Oak Harbor.  
 
With this information I have begun an effort to make sure our youth are aware that this is not the case 
and when you are caught as a minor in possession of alcohol there will be sanctions.  
 
Part of that process involved working with local distributors of alcohol to make sure they knew they were 
not to be selling to minors. Fortunately in late January the Oak Harbor Youth Commission informed us of 
a grant for approximately $7,500.00 titled “Law Enforcement Partnerships” part of which would pay for 
an officer’s salary to spend time educating these businesses and conducting undercover operations with 

 

City of Oak Harbor 
City Council Agenda Bill 
 



  

the Washington State Liquor Board to make sure these businesses are not selling alcohol to minors. The 
education and compliance checks needed to commence March 1, 2013 and had to be completed by May 
31, 2013; that has been done.  
 
Ten (10) checks were conducted resulting in three (3) citations being issued followed up by some 
education for those specific businesses. On a positive note this means that seven (7) were compliant and 
did not supply any alcohol to the undercover minor operative.  
 
The grant funding was sent from the Washington State Division of Behavioral Health and Recovery, 
channeled through Island County to the Oak Harbor Youth Commission. Once the education and 
compliance checks were completed and the administrative paperwork was submitted we discovered there 
was a surplus of funds. The surplus of funds was spent, with approval on new hand held portable breath 
testing devices (11 devices). The majority of which will be sent to the Island County Sheriff’s Office to 
replace their older out of date devices.   
 
Note: The Interlocal Agreement was delayed partly due to maternity leave for paid staff at the Oak 
Harbor Youth Commission.  
  
STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT 

N/A 
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Authorize the Mayor to sign the Interlocal Agreement to participate in the program and receive funding.  
 

ATTACHMENTS 
 

 Oak Harbor Youth Commission Report on 2010 Healthy Youth Survey 
 Brief Description of Law Enforcement Partnership Project to Reduce Underage Drinking   
 Law Enforcement Partnership Request for Proposal  
 Law Enforcement Partnership Statement of Work  
 Interlocal Agreement  

  
MAYOR'S COMMENTS 

 











































 City of Oak Harbor 

City Council Agenda Bill 

 

Agenda Bill - Setting Workshop Dates 

                     Bill No. CA 4.f. 
  Date:    July 2, 2013___________ 

Subject:  Workshop Meeting Dates 

 

FROM:     Larry E. Cort, City Administrator 

 
INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY: 

   
_____ Scott Dudley, Mayor 

  _____  Doug Merriman, Finance Director 
 _____ Grant Weed, Interim City Attorney, as to form 
       
 
PURPOSE  

The purpose of this agenda bill is to schedule workshop meetings for the months of July, August and Sep-
tember.  Said workshop meetings shall be in lieu of standing committee meetings and shall have a sunset 
date of September 30, 2013.    
  
AUTHORITY  

General City Council authority is established at Chapter 35A.11 and 35A.12 RCW and Chapter 1.16 OHMC. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION 

Likely reduction in costs associated with taping and televising Council meetings.  
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT 

On March 5, 2013, the City Council met in a special workshop meeting to discuss the efficacy of the exist-
ing format and function of the standing committees. Subsequently, Council adopted Ordinance 1656 on 
April 2, 2013, that suspended regular standing committee meetings, authorized setting of regular monthly 
workshop meetings, and established a sunset date of June 30, 2013.  
  
At the conclusion of the initial trial period, Council chose to continue the monthly workshop format. Ordi-
nance 1663 was adopted on June 18th and extended the suspension of Standing Committee meetings and 
authorized Special Workshop meetings for an additional 90-day period.  Ordinance 1663 will sunset on 
September 30, 2013, and return to the Standing Committee format. If Council chooses to maintain the 
monthly workshop format in lieu of the Standing Committees, an amendment to the OHMC would then be 
necessary.  
 
STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT 

This item has not been reviewed by a standing committee. 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Motion to set Wednesday, July 24, 2013; Wednesday, August 28, 2013, and Wednesday, September 25, 
2013, from 3:00 to 5:30 p.m. as Special City Council Workshop Meetings.  
 

ATTACHMENTS 

None 
 
 



7/2/2013 Lodging Tax: North Whidbey Lions Club Car Show 

 Bill No. 6.a. 
 Date: July 2, 2013   
 Subject: 2013 2% Lodging Tax Funding 

Request – N. Whidbey Lions Car 
Show (Resolution 13-14) 

FROM: Doug Merriman 
 Finance Director 
  

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY: 
            Scott Dudley, Mayor 
            Larry Cort, City Administrator 
            Grant Weed, Interim City Attorney, as to form 
 
PURPOSE 

To receive and approve the funding recommendations from the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee for 
support of the North Whidbey Lions Club request for financial support. 
 
AUTHORITY 

RCW 67.28.180 Lodging tax authorized – Conditions:  Establishes City authority to levy the “basic” 
hotel-motel tax of 2%. 
 
RCW 67.28.181 Special excise taxes authorized:  Establishes City authority to levy an “additional” 
hotel-motel tax of 2%. 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT 
The City of Oak Harbor sponsors an annual grant program funded by revenues from 2% lodging tax 
proceeds, more commonly known as the Lodging Tax Grant Program.  Organizations are encouraged 
to apply for funding if they feel that their activity promotes tourism in a manner that attracts visitors 
to Oak Harbor from other localities. The Lodging Tax Advisory Committee (LTAC) met on 
December 6, 2012 after City Council approved the 45-day review period during Council’s September 
4, 2012 regular meeting. 
 
During the application process, it was noted by the LTAC that one of the annual programs supported 
by the City, the Oak Harbor Rotary Club Car Show, had not submitted an application.  The decision 
was made to proceed with the applications that had been received, to place an inquiry with the Rotary 
Club as to the status of the event, and to bring back an application for funding, if applicable.  The 
City’s inquiry determined that the management of the Car Show had transferred from the Oak Harbor 
Rotary Club to the North Whidbey Lions Club during the application period. The North Whidbey 
Lions Club has asked for consideration of Council to award the club $4,000 for tourism cost support 
for the 2013 Car Show, scheduled to occur on August 10, 2013. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Adopt Resolution 13-14 awarding the 2013 Lodging Tax Grant and authorize payment of funds. 
 

ATTACHMENTS 
Resolution 13-14 
 
MAYOR'S COMMENTS 

 

City of Oak Harbor 
City Council Agenda Bill 
 



Resolution 13-14 - Page 1 of 1 

RESOLUTION 13-14 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR CITY COUNCIL REGARD-
ING THE ACCEPTANCE AND APPROVAL OF THE REQUEST FOR FUNDING 
FOR THE 2013 NORTH WHIDBEY LIONS CLUB CAR SHOW IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $4,000 

  
WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor has imposed both the “basic” hotel-motel tax of 2% (RCW 
67.28.180) and the additional lodging tax if 2% (RCW 67.28.181) upon the sale of, or change 
made for the furnishing of lodging; and   
  
WHEREAS, cities, with a population of 5,000 or more, must establish a lodging tax advisory 
committee to ensure that interested parties have a forum for debating the merits of a proposed 
imposition of a lodging tax, of a proposed increase in a lodging tax rate, of a proposed removal 
of a tax exemption, or a proposed “change in use” of tax revenues.  Proposals for change must 
be submitted to the lodging tax advisory committee for review and comment at least 45 days 
prior to taking action on the proposal; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor submitted the proposal for the 2013 
Lodging Tax Grant Program to the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee on December 6, 2012; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee reviewed the application submitted and 
makes the following recommendations for funding to the City Council: 
 

2013 North Whidbey Lions Club Car Show  $4,000.00 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor, Washington, accepts the rec-
ommendations of the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee to provide 2% funding to the listed ap-
plicant for the amount as shown, and authorizes the award recommended by the Lodging Tax 
Advisory Committee. 
  
PASSED and approved by the City Council this 2nd day of July 2013.  
    
       CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 
        
       SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 
Attest: 
 
 
 
Valerie J. Loffler, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
 
Grant W. Weed, Interim City Attorney 



City of Oak Harbor 

City Council Agenda Bill 

 

 Bill No. 7.a. and b. 

 Date: July 2, 2013   
 Subject: 2012 International Building 

& Fire Codes Amendments 
  Ordinances 1660 and 1661 

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director 
 Ray Merrill, Fire Chief 
 David W. Anderson, Building Official 
 Mike Buxton, Deputy Fire Chief 
 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY: 
    Scott Dudley, Mayor 
    Larry Cort, City Administrator 
    Doug Merriman, Finance Director 
    Grant Weed, Interim City Attorney, as to form 
 

PURPOSE 

This agenda bill proposes to amend the City's Building and Fire Codes by adopting the 2012 
International Building Code; 2012 International Residential Code; 2012 International Mechanical Code; 
2012 Uniform Plumbing Code; 2012 International Energy Conservation Code, Residential; 2012 
International Energy Conservation Code, Commercial; and the 2012 International Fire Code as regulated 
and approved by the Washington State Building Code Council on July 1, 2013 with changes reflecting 
City practices.  Two draft ordinances incorporating the codes noted above into the Oak Harbor 
Municipal Code were introduced to the City Council at the June 18, 2013 meeting. 
 
AUTHORITY 
The various codes contained herein are adopted by the Washington State Building Code Council 
pursuant to Chapter 19.27 and 70.92 RCW. Those codes are periodically updated by the Building Code 
Council. State law provides that unless amended by the City Council, the State Building Code shall be in 
effect in the City (RCW 19.27.031).  
 
FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION 

Funds Required: N/A 
Appropriation Source: N/A 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT 

The City is currently using the 2009 version of the International Codes. The 2012 International Codes 
have been adopted by the Washington State Building Code Council and will become effective on July 1, 
2013.  Under state law, cities and counties are responsible for enforcing these codes as adopted by the 
Washington State Building Code Council.  However, state law allows the jurisdictions to adopt 



City of Oak Harbor 

City Council Agenda Bill 

 

amendments to the codes to reflect local circumstances.  Rather than adopting each code, this ordinance 
provides that the most recent edition is in effect as amended by City Code. Since the codes are in effect 
by state law, only the local amendments are actually adopted.  The following international codes have 
been adopted by the Washington State Building Code Council and become effective on July 1, 2013: 
 
 2012 International Building Code 
 2012 International Residential Code 
 2012 International Mechanical  Code 
 2012 Uniform Plumbing Code 
 2012 International Energy Conservation Code, Residential Provisions.  
 2012 International Energy Conservation Code, Commercial Provisions 
 2012 International Fire Code 
 
A summary of the more significant changes from the 2009 version to the 2012 version of the 
international codes is shown below: 

 2012 International Building Code (IBC): One of the more significant changes pertains to 
occupancies where the display, sale or storage of upholstered furniture occurs; those occupancies 
are now required to be sprinklered.  The change is designed to protect large furniture stores when 
the fire area exceeds 5,000 sq. ft. and warehouses when the fire area exceeds 2,500 sq. ft. 
Another change is the use of wireless smoke alarms in residential occupancies.  The 2012 IBC 
allows the use of wireless smoke alarms providing all alarms throughout the building will sound 
when activated.  

 
 2012 International Residential Code (IRC): Residential single-family homes are now required to 

provide fire protection in crawl spaces when this area is used for storage or contains fuel fired 
appliances. Installation of ½ GWB or 5/8 wood structural panel or other approved material is 
now required on the underside of the floor assemblies. This change addresses concerns for 
firefighter safety and incidents of injury or death to firefighters due to the collapse of floors 
while fighting residential fires.  

 
 2012 International Mechanical Code (IMC): The Mechanical Code establishes minimum 

installation standards for all heating, ventilation, air conditioning, ductwork and commercial 
hood installation requirements. The 2012 IMC remains largely unchanged from the 2009 version 
except for housekeeping items.  One notable change however requires all piping and tubing to be 
identified as being tested by an approved third-party testing agency or certified by an approved 
third-party certification agency.  

 



City of Oak Harbor 

City Council Agenda Bill 

 

 2012 Uniform Plumbing Code (UPC): The Plumbing Code establishes minimum installation 
standards for all plumbing installations, cross connection, potable water supply, traps, fixtures, 
sanitary drainage and indirect wastes. The 2012 UPC remains largely unchanged from the 2009 
version except for housekeeping items.  

 
 2012 International Energy Conservation Code, Residential (IECCR): This new code replaces the 

existing 2009 Washington State Energy Code. Washington State has been instrumental in the 
development of a national energy code. The result is the WSEC was used as a model in the 
development of the IECCR and the IECCC. This change reflects the compilation of the 
International Conservation Code and the Washington State Energy Code. The IECCR only 
includes residential energy requirements. 

 
 2012 International Energy Conservation Code, Commercial (IECCC): Similar to above, this new 

code replaces the existing 2009 WSEC Code. This change reflects the compilation of the 
International Conservation Code and the Washington State Energy Code for commercial energy 
requirements. 

 
 2012 International Fire Code (IFC): The Fire code establishes the minimum regulations for fire 

prevention and fire protection systems using prescriptive and performance-related provisions. 
The requirements of the 2012 IFC are very similar to those of the 2009 version.  The code has 
been reorganized however to allow for ease of use and to improve readability.  The 2012 IFC is 
fully compatible with all the International Codes as proposed to be adopted by the City.   

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 

•Conduct public meeting. 
•Adopt Ordinance No. 1660 approving the 2012 International Building Codes 
•Adopt Ordinance No. 1661 approving the 2012 Fire Codes 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Draft Ordinance Number 1660 – Building Codes 
2. Draft Ordinance Number 1661 – Fire Codes 

  



2012 International Building Code Ordinance 
Page 1 of 19 

ORDINANCE NO. 1660 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 17 “BUILDINGS” OF THE OAK HARBOR 
MUNICIPAL CODE TO ADOPT THE 2012 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODES WITH 
SPECIFIC PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor is authorized to adopt ordinances for the general welfare of 
its citizens; and 
 
WHEREAS the Washington State Building Code Act requires local jurisdictions to enforce the 
State Building Code within its jurisdiction; and   
 
WHEREAS, the Washington State Building Code Council has adopted amendments to the 2012 
International Building Codes; and   
 
WHEREAS, the City is further authorized to adopt and enforce building codes and to adopt and 
amend provisions of the State building codes under Chapter 19.27 of the Revised Code of 
Washington; and 
 
WHEREAS the Washington State Energy Code has been replaced with the International Energy 
Conservation Code, Residential, WAC 51-11R and International Energy Conservation Code, 
Commercial, WAC 51-11C; and   
 
WHEREAS, the City Council deems adoption of this ordinance to be in the best interest of its 
citizens; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor, Washington does hereby 
ordain as follows: 
 
 
Section One. The table of contents of Title 17 of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code is hereby 
amended to read as follows for the following chapters: 

Title 17 

BUILDINGS 
 
Chapters: 
17.05  International Building Code 
17.06  International Residential Code 
17.10  International Mechanical Code 
17.12  Uniform Plumbing Code 
17.14  Washington State Energy Code Repealed 
17.15 International Energy Conservation Code, Residential  
17.16  International Energy Conservation Code, Commercial  
17.18 Repealed 
17.20 Flood Damage Prevention 



2012 International Building Code Ordinance 
Page 2 of 19 

17.22 2006 International Property Maintenance Code 
17.24 Sidewalks, Curbs and Gutters Installation 
17.28 Repealed 
17.30 Noise Attenuation Standards 
17.40 Survey Monuments 
 
Section Two.  Oak Harbor Municipal Code Section 17.05.015, last adopted by §3 of Ordinance 
1599 in 2011 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

17.05.015 Applicability of the International Building Code. 
The most recent edition of the International Building Code adopted by the Washington State 
Building Code Council under the provisions of Chapter 19.27 RCW and as amended herein is in 
effect as the City’s building code. A copy shall be filed in the office of the city clerk for 
examination by the public. The copy of codes on file may be placed by the city clerk in the 
custody of the office of the building official in order to make them more readily available for 
inspection and use by the general public. 
 
Section Three.  Oak Harbor Municipal Code Section 17.05.030, last adopted by §3 of Ordinance 
1599 in 2011 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

17.05.030 Permit fees. 
The city of Oak Harbor hereby adopts the following fee schedule for the building code: 
 
(1) Building Permit Fees Adopted. For determining the value of a structure, the most current 

issue of the Building Safety Journal Magazine, which offers the square foot construction 
costs table as published by the International Code Council, is adopted by reference. 

 
(2) Plan Review Fees Adopted.  When submittal documents are required by the International 

Building Code Section 107, a plan review fee shall be paid at the time of submitting the 
submittal documents for plan review.  The said plan review fee shall be 65 percent of the 
building permit fee as determined in Table 17-1.  The plan review fees specified are 
separate fees from the permit fees and are in addition to the permit fees.  When submittal 
documents are incomplete or changed so as to require additional plan review or when the 
project involves deferred submittals items, an additional plan review fee shall be charged 
at the rate shown in Table 17-2. 

 
 
 TABLE 17-1 BUILDING PERMIT FEES 
 Total Valuation  Fees 
 $1.00 to $500.00  $23.50 
 $501.00 to $2,000  $23.50 for the first $500.00 plus $3.05 for each additional 

$100.00 or fraction thereof, to and including $2,000 
 $2,001 to $25,000  $69.25 for the first $2,000 plus $14.00 for each additional 

$1,000 or fraction thereof, to and including $25,000 
 $25,001 to $50,000  $391.25 for the first $25,000 plus $10.10 for each additional 

$1,000 or fraction thereof, to and including $50,000 
 $50,001 to $100,000  $643.75 for the first $50,000 plus $7.00 for each additional 

$1,000 or fraction thereof, to and including $100,000 
 $100,001 to $500,000  $993.75 for the first $100,000 plus $5.60 for each additional 



2012 International Building Code Ordinance 
Page 3 of 19 

$1,000 or fraction thereof 
 $500,001 to $1,000,000  $3,233.75 for the first $500,000 plus $4.75 for each additional 

$1,000 or fraction thereof, to and including $1,000,000 
 $1,000,001 and up  $5,608.75 for the first $1,000,000 plus $3.65 for each 

additional $1,000 or fraction thereof 
 
 
  
 TABLE 17-2 OTHER INSPECTIONS AND FEES: 
 1. Inspections outside of normal business hours 
(minimum charge – two hours) 

 $47.00 per hour 

    
 2. Inspections for which no fee is specifically 
indicated (minimum charge – one-half hour) 

 $47.00 per hour 

 3. Additional plan review required by changes, 
additions or revisions to approved plans (minimum charge 
– one-half hour) 

 $47.00 per hour 

 4. For use of outside consultants for plan checking 
and inspections, or both 

 Actual costs 

  
  
  
 
  
 TABLE 17-3 MISCELLANEOUS BUILDING PERMIT FEES 

ACTION FEE 
Antenna Tower $25.00 
Building Code Interpretation $329.00 
Change Lot After Plan Review or Issuance of Permit $100.00 
Change Plans During or After Plan Review New Plan Review Fee 
Change or Revise Plans After Issuance of Permit Current Hourly Rate per IBC or New 

Plan Review Fee 
Covered Patio Varies by Valuation 
Covered Porch Varies by Valuation 
Decks Varies by Valuation 
Demolitions $50.00 Plus $4.50 State Surcharge 
Espresso Carts (portable and stand alone) $250.00 
Factory Built Structures Varies by Valuation 
Fences Over 6 Feet in Height Current Hourly Rate per IBC for Plan 

Review Plus $25.00 Permit Fee 
Flagpoles $25.00 
Fireplaces, Freestanding, Wood, Gas, and Propane 
       Freestanding (wood/gas/pellet/propane 
       Insert  (wood/gas) 
       Fireplace (masonry) 

 
$35.00 
$25 
$100 

Fireplaces, Inserts, Wood, Gas and Propane $25.00 
Mobile Homes, Single Wide $120.00 
Mobile Home, Double and Triple Wide $150.00 
Modular Homes or Buildings $500.00 
Modular Offices (Job Shacks) $350.00 
Moved Buildings $50.00 Prior to Moving Together with a 

Building Permit Fee Based on the IBC 
Valuation for New Building and Cost of 



2012 International Building Code Ordinance 
Page 4 of 19 

 TABLE 17-3 MISCELLANEOUS BUILDING PERMIT FEES 
Moved Building. 

Occupancy Permit $21.00 
Penalty Permit Fee Double Permit Fee 
  
Re-Roofs Residential (Permit Required for Overlays of Two 

Layers or More) $25.00 
Commercial Varies by Valuation 
Retaining Walls (Permit Not Required Under Four Feet) $100.00 or IBC Valuation, Whichever 

Is Greater 
Satellite Dish (48" Diameter or Greater) $25.00 
Signs 25 Sq. Ft. or Less (New Construction) Permit Fee, Plan Review Fee, and $4.50 

Surcharge Plus $25.00 
26 Sq. Ft. or More (New Construction) Permit Fee, Plan Review Fee, and $4.50 

Surcharge Plus $50.00 
25 Sq. Ft. or Less (Existing) Permit Fee, and $4.50 Surcharge Plus 

$25.00 
26 Sq. Ft. or More (Existing) Permit Fee, and $4.50 Surcharge Plus 

$50.00 
Solariums Varies by Valuation 
Work Commencing Before Issuance of Permit (Whichever Is Greater) Double Permit 

Fee or $100.00 
Wood Stoves Including Inserts $100.00 
 
(3) International Property Maintenance Code. A fee for an on-site compliance inspection by 

the building official or his representative shall be as set forth by Table 17-2, 
Miscellaneous Building Inspection Fees. Upon such application and payment of the fee 
herein provided the building official shall notify the applicant of the date and time of the 
inspection. 

 
(4) Uniform Swimming Pool, Spa and Hot Tub Code. The fees for swimming pools, spas, 

and hot tubs shall be as set forth in Table 17-5, Plumbing Permit Fees. 
 
(5) Washington State Energy CodeInternational Energy Conservation Code, Residential. A 

fee for an on-site compliance inspection by the building official or his representative shall 
be as set forth by Table 17-2, Miscellaneous Building Inspection Fees. Upon such 
application and payment of the fee herein provided the building official shall notify the 
applicant of the date and time of the inspection. 

 
(6) International Energy Conservation Code, Commercial. A fee for an on-site compliance 

inspection by the building official or his representative shall be as set forth by Table 17-2, 
Miscellaneous Building Inspection Fees. Upon such application and payment of the fee 
herein provided the building official shall notify the applicant of the date and time of the 
inspection. 

 
Section Four.  Oak Harbor Municipal Code Section 17.05.060, last adopted by §3 of Ordinance 
1599 in 2011 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 



2012 International Building Code Ordinance 
Page 5 of 19 

 

17.05.060 Amendments – Additions. 
The following sections and appendix chapters of the International Building Code as adopted in 
OHMC 17.05.015 are amended to read as follows: 
 
(1) Appendix chapters E, F, G, I and J of the International Building Code are hereby adopted. 
 
(2) Section 101.1 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

101.1 Title. These regulations shall be known as the Building Code of the City of Oak 
Harbor, Washington hereinafter referred to as "this code". 
  

(3) Section 101.4.3 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

101.4.3 Plumbing. The provisions of the City of Oak Harbor Plumbing Code as adopted 
by the Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 17.12 shall apply to the installation, 
alteration, repair and replacement of plumbing systems, including equipment, appliances, 
fixtures, fittings and appurtenances, and where connected to a water or sewage system 
and all aspects of medical gas system. The provisions of the State of Washington 
requirements for private sewage disposal shall apply to private sewage disposal systems. 

 
(4) Section 101.4.4 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

101.4.4 Property Maintenance. The provisions of the City of Oak Harbor Property 
Maintenance Code as adopted by Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 17.22 shall apply 
to existing structures and premises; equipment and facilities; light, ventilation, space 
heating, sanitation, life and fire safety hazards, responsibilities of owners, operators and 
occupants; and occupancy of existing premises and structures. 
 

(5) Section 101.4.6 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

101.4.6 Energy. The provisions of the State of Washington Energy CodeInternational 
Energy Conservation Code, Residential and the International Energy Conservation Code, 
Commercial as adopted by Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 17.145 and Chapter 
17.16 shall apply to all matters governing the design and construction of buildings for 
energy efficiency. 

 
(6) Section 101.4.7 is hereby added to read as follows: 
 

101.4.7 Electrical.  The provisions of the National Electrical Code as set forth in the Washington 
Administrative Code Chapter 296-46B as regulated and enforced by State of Washington Labor & 
Industries, Electrical Division shall apply to the installation of electrical systems, including 
alterations repairs, replacement, equipment, appliances, fixtures, fittings and appurtenances 
thereto. 

 
(7) Section 105.2 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

105.2 Work exempt from permit. Exemptions from permit requirements of this code shall 
not be deemed to grant authorization for any work to be done in any manner in violation 
of the provisions of this code or any other laws or ordinances of this jurisdiction. Permits 
shall not be required for the following: 

Building: 



2012 International Building Code Ordinance 
Page 6 of 19 

1. One-story detached accessory structures used as tool and storage sheds, 
playhouses and similar uses, provided the floor area does not exceed 120 square feet 
(11 m2). 

2. Fences not over 67 feet (1829 mm) high. 

3. Oil derricks. 

4. Retaining walls that are not over 4 feet (1219 mm) in height measured from the 
bottom of the footing to the top of the wall, provided the wall is set back from any 
adjacent property lines or structures a distance at least equal to the height of the wall and 
the material retained slopes 1 vertical to 2 horizontal (or less) up and away from the wall 
unless supporting a surcharge or impounding Class I, II or IIIA liquids. 

5. Water tanks supported directly on grade if the capacity does not exceed 5,000 
gallons (18925 L) and the ratio of height to diameter or width does not exceed 2:1. 

6. Sidewalks and driveways not more than 30 inches (762 mm) above adjacent 
grade, and not over any basement or story below and are not part of an accessible route. 

7. Painting, papering, tiling, carpeting, cabinets, counter tops and similar finish 
work. 

8. Temporary motion picture, television and theater stage sets and scenery. 

9. Prefabricated swimming pools accessory to a Group R-3 occupancy that are less 
than 24 inches (610 mm) deep, do not exceed 5,000 gallons (18925 L) and are installed 
entirely above ground. 

10. Shade cloth structures constructed for nursery or agricultural purposes, not 
including service systems. 

11. Swings and other playground equipment. accessory to detached one- and two-
family dwellings. 

12. Window awnings in group R-3 and U occupancies supported by an exterior wall 
that do not project more than 54 inches (1372 mm) from the exterior wall and do not 
require additional support of Group R-3 and U occupancies. 

13. Nonfixed and movable fixtures, cases, racks, counters and partitions not over 5 
feet 9 inches (1753 mm) in height. 

Electrical: 

Repairs and maintenance: Minor repair work, including the replacement of lamps or the 
connection of approved portable electrical equipment to approved permanently installed 
receptacles. 

Radio and television transmitting stations: The provisions of this code shall not apply to 
electrical equipment used for radio and television transmissions, but do apply to 
equipment and wiring for a power supply and the installations of towers and antennas. 

Temporary testing systems: A permit shall not be required for the installation of any 
temporary system required for the testing or servicing of electrical equipment or 
apparatus. 

Gas: 
1. Portable heating appliance. 
 
2. Replacement of any minor part that does not alter approval of equipment or 



2012 International Building Code Ordinance 
Page 7 of 19 

make such equipment unsafe. 
 
Mechanical: 
1. Portable heating appliance. 
 
2. Portable ventilation equipment. 
 
3. Portable cooling unit. 
 
4. Steam, hot or chilled water piping within any heating or cooling equipment 
regulated by this code. 
 
5. Replacement of any part that does not alter its approval or make it unsafe. 
 
6. Portable evaporative cooler. 
 
7. Self-contained refrigeration system containing 10 pounds (5 kg) or less of 
refrigerant and actuated by motors of 1 horsepower (746 W) or less. 

Plumbing: 

1. The stopping of leaks in drains, water, soil, waste or vent pipe, provided, 
however, that if any concealed trap, drain pipe, water, soil, waste or vent pipe becomes 
defective and it becomes necessary to remove and replace the same with new material, 
such work shall be considered as new work and a permit shall be obtained and 
inspection made as provided in this code. 

 
2. The clearing of stoppages or the repairing of leaks in pipes, valves or fixtures and 
the removal and reinstallation of water closets, provided such repairs do not involve or 
require the replacement or rearrangement of valves, pipes or fixtures. 
 

(8) Section 105.3.1.1 is hereby added to read as follows: 

105.3.1.1 Prerequisites for Issuance of Permit. 

The Building Official shall determine whether the following requirements have been met 
prior to issuance of a permit: 

1. Any requirements or regulations imposed on a project as a condition of a land 
use approval process; 

2. Any requirements or regulations imposed on a project as a condition of the site 
civil process; 

 
3. Any transportation, school, parks or other mitigation or impact fees are paid as 
adopted by Oak Harbor Municipal Code Sections 11.32 or 19.48 respectively; 
 
4. Approval of Design Review as required by Oak Harbor Municipal Code for 
Design Guidelines and Regulation as required by Title 19. 
 
5. Compliance with the State Environmental Policy Act, as adopted by Oak Harbor 
Municipal Code Title 20. 
 
6. Compliance with the Flood Management requirements as adopted by Oak 
Harbor Municipal Code Title 11 and Title 20. 



2012 International Building Code Ordinance 
Page 8 of 19 

 
7. Compliance with environmentally Critical Areas Protection requirements as 
required by Oak Harbor Municipal Code Title 20. 
 

(9) Section 107.1 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

107.1 General. Submittal documents consisting of construction documents, statement of 
special inspections, geotechnical report and other data shall be submitted in two or more 
sets with each permit application. The construction documents shall be prepared by a 
registered design professional where required by the statutes of the jurisdiction in which 
the project is to be constructed. Where special conditions exist, the building official is 
authorized to require additional construction documents to be prepared by a registered 
design professional. All plans for construction, erection, enlargement, alteration or repairs 
of building or structures 4,000 square feet or over shall be designed, prepared and 
stamped by an architect or engineer licensed by the state of Washington. 
Exception: The building official is authorized to waive the submission of construction 
documents and other data not required to be prepared by a registered design 
professional if it is found that the nature of the work applied for is such that review of 
construction documents is not necessary to obtain compliance with this code. 
 

(10) Section 109.3 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

109.3 Building permits valuations. The applicant for a permit shall provide an estimated 
permit value at time of application. Permit valuations shall include total value of work, 
including materials and labor, for which the permit is being issued, such as electrical, gas, 
mechanical, plumbing equipment and permanent systems. If, in the opinion of the 
building official, the valuation is underestimated on the application, the permit shall be 
denied, unless the applicant can show detailed estimates to meet the approval of the 
building official. Final building permit valuation shall be set by the building official. The 
valuation for commonly built structures shall be determined by the most current issue of 
the Building Safety Journal, which offers square foot construction costs table as 
published by the International Code Council, adopted herein by reference. 

 
(11) Section 109.6 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

109.6 Refunds. The building official is authorized to establish a refund policy. The 
building official may authorize refunding of any fee paid hereunder which was 
erroneously paid or collected. The building official may authorize refunding of not more 
than 80 percent of the permit fee paid when no work has been done under a permit 
issued in accordance with this code. The building official may authorize refunding of not 
more than 80 percent of the plan review fee paid when an application for a permit for 
which a plan review has been paid is withdrawn or canceled before any plan reviewing is 
done. The building official shall not authorize refunding of any fee paid except on written 
application filed by the original permittee not later than 180 days after the date of fee 
payment. 

 
(12) Section 111.5 is hereby added to read as follows: 

111.5 Violation of requirements for certificate of occupancy. The City Council affirms that 
the issuance of any certificate of occupancy is of vital importance in the safeguarding of 
life safety, property safety and health of occupants of any structure; and further, that the 
enforcement of all city development regulations is of vital importance to the city's 
economic vitality and the public good. Any person allowing a building to be occupied 
without a certificate of occupancy first being issued as required by this Chapter shall be 
subject to the civil penalty provisions of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code Section 
17.05.090. 



2012 International Building Code Ordinance 
Page 9 of 19 

 
(13) Section 113 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

113.1 Board of Appeals. All references to the term "board of Appeal(s)" shall deem to 
mean the Hearing Examiner as per OHMC 18.40.180. Permits under this chapter shall be 
Type I review process as per OHMC 18.20.230. Appeals of decisions of applicable codes 
adopted under this chapter shall be to the hearing examiner. 

 
(14) Section 202 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

GRADE PLANE. A referenced plane representing the average of the finished ground 
level, adjoining the building at all exterior walls. Where the finished ground level slopes 
away from the exterior walls, the reference plane shall be established by the lowest 
points within the area between the building and the lot line or, where the lot line is more 
than 10 feet from the building between the structure and a point 10 feet from the building. 
  

(15) Section 3201.5 is hereby added to read as follows: 

3201.5 Right-of-Way Permits. A permit is required for any construction, alteration, repair, 
move, demolish, replace, use or encroachment into the public right-of way as determined 
by the City Engineer. 
 

(16) Appendix Section J103.1 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

J103.1 Permits Required. Except as exempted in Section J103.2, no grading shall be 
performed without first having obtained a permit therefor from the City Engineer. A 
grading permit does not include the construction of retaining walls or other structures. 
 

(17) Appendix Section J104.3 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
J104.3 Geotechnical report. 
A geotechnical report prepared by a registered design professional shall be provided.  
The report shall contain the following: 
1. The nature and distribution of existing soils; 
2. Conclusions and recommendations for grading procedures; 
3. Soil design criteria for any structures or embankments required to accomplish the 

proposed grading; and 
4. Where necessary, slope stability studies, and recommendations and conclusions 

regarding site geology. 
 Exception; A geotechnical report is not required where the building code 
official or city engineer determines that the nature of the work applied for is such 
that a report is no necessary. 

 
(18) Appendix J106.1 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

J106.1 Maximum slope. The slope of cut surfaces shall be no steeper than is safe for the 
intended use, and shall be no steeper than 2 horizontal to 1 vertical (50 percent) unless 
the applicant furnishes a soils report justifying a steeper slope. 

Exceptions: 

1. A cut surface may be at a slope of 1.5 horizontal to 1 vertical (67 percent) provided 
that all the following are met: 

1.1 It is not intended to support structures or surcharges. 



2012 International Building Code Ordinance 
Page 10 of 19 

1.2 It is adequately protected against erosion. 

1.3 It is no more than 8 feet (2438 mm) in height. 

1.4 It is approved by the city engineer. 

1.5 Ground water is not encountered. 

2. A cut surface in bedrock shall be permitted to be at a slope of 1 horizontal to 1 
vertical (100 percent). 

 
(19) Appendix J108.3 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

J108.3 Slope protection. Where required to protect adjacent properties at the toe of a 
slope from adverse effects of the grading, additional protection, approved by the city 
engineer, shall be included. Such protection may include but shall not be limited to: 

1. Setbacks greater than those required by Figure J108.1. 

2. Provisions for retaining walls or similar construction. 

3. Erosion protection of the fill slopes. 

4. Provision for the control of surface waters. 
 

(20) Appendix J109.3 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

J109.3 Interceptor Drains. Interceptor drains shall be installed along the top of cut slopes 
receiving drainage from a tributary width greater than 40 feet, measured horizontally. 
They shall have a minimum depth of 1 foot and a minimum width of 3 feet. The slope 
shall be approved by the city engineer, but shall not be less than 50 horizontal to 1 
vertical. The drain shall be paved with concrete not less than 3 inches in thickness, or by 
other materials suitable to the application. Discharge from the drain shall be 
accomplished in a manner to prevent erosion and shall be approved by the city engineer. 

 
Section Five.  Oak Harbor Municipal Code Section 17.05.090, last adopted by §3 of Ordinance 
1599 in 2011 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

17.05.090 Penalties. 
(1) It shall be unlawful for a person, firm or corporation to erect, construct, enlarge, alter, 

repair, move, improve, remove, convert or demolish, equip, use, occupy or maintain any 
building, structure or building service equipment or cause or permit the same to be done 
in violation of this chapter or the technical codes. 

 
(2) Civil Violation. Except as provided in subsections (4) and (5) of this section, any 

violation of any of the provisions of this chapter or of the technical codes constitutes a 
civil violation as provided for in Chapter 1.28 OHMC, for which a monetary penalty may 
be imposed as provided therein. 

 
(3) Criminal Penalty. In addition to or as an alternative to any other penalty provided in this 

chapter or by law, any person who intentionally or knowingly violates any of the 
provisions of this chapter or the technical codes shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and 
upon conviction shall be punishable by a fine of up to $1,000 or a jail sentence of up to 
90 days in jail, or both such fine and jail time. 



2012 International Building Code Ordinance 
Page 11 of 19 

 
(4) Plumbing Code Violations. Violations of the Uniform Plumbing Code as adopted under 

OHMC 17.12.020 shall be misdemeanors punishable by a fine of up to $1,000 or a jail 
sentence of up to 90 days, or both such fine and jail time. 

 
(54) Violations of Orders under This Chapter. Any person constructing, repairing, operating, 

maintaining, changing an occupancy, occupying or moving a building, structure, 
occupancy, or premises contrary to the provisions of this chapter or who continues to 
construct, repair, operate, maintain, change occupancy, occupy or move such building, 
structure, occupancy or premises when ordered by the building official to desist from 
violating a provision or provisions of this chapter shall be guilty of a misdemeanor 
punishable by a fine of up to $1,000 or a jail sentence of up to 90 days, or both such fine 
and jail time. 

 
(65) Separate Offense. Each day or portion thereof upon which a violation occurs constitutes a 

separate offense under subsections (1), (2), (3), (4) and (5) of this section. 
 
(76) Destruction of Notice. It shall be unlawful for any person to remove, mutilate, destroy or 

conceal any notice issued and posted by the building official pursuant to the provisions of 
this chapter or the building code which violations shall be a civil offense as described in 
subsection (2) of this section.  

 
Section Six.  Oak Harbor Municipal Code Section 17.06.020, last adopted by §3 of Ordinance 
1599 in 2011 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
17.06.020 Applicability of the International Residential Code. 
The most recent edition of the International Residential Code published by the International 
Code Council as adopted by the Washington State Building Code Council under the provisions 
of Chapter 19.27 RCW and amended herein, are in effect in City of Oak Harbor.  One copy of 
the document identified in this section shall be filed in the office of the city clerk for examination 
by the public. The copy of codes on file may be placed by the city clerk in the custody of the 
office of the building official in order to make them more readily available for inspection and use 
by the general public. 
 
 
Section Seven.  Oak Harbor Municipal Code Section 17.10.020, last adopted by §5 of Ordinance 
1599 in 2011 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
17.10.020 Applicability of International Mechanical Code. 
The most recent edition of the International Mechanical Code as published by the International 
Code Council and adopted by the Washington State Building Code Council under the provisions 
of Chapter 19.27 RCW as amended herein is in effect in the City of Oak Harbor One copy of 
each document listed in this section shall be filed in the office of the city clerk for examination 
by the public. The copy of codes on file may be placed by the city clerk in the custody of the 
office of the building official in order to make them more readily available for inspection and use 
by the general public. 



2012 International Building Code Ordinance 
Page 12 of 19 

 
Section Eight.  Oak Harbor Municipal Code Section 17.10.070, last adopted by §5 of Ordinance 
1599 in 2011 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
17.10.070 Amendments – Additions. 
The following sections and appendix chapters of the International Mechanical Code as adopted 
in OHMC 17.10.020 are amended to read as follows: 
 
(1) Appendix A of the International Mechanical Code is hereby adopted. 
 
(21) Section 106.4.3 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

106.4.3 Expiration. Every permit issued by the building official under the provisions of this code 
shall expire by limitation and become null and void if the work authorized by such permit is not 
commenced within one hundred eighty (180) days from the date of such permit, or if the work 
authorized by such permit is suspended or abandoned at any time after the work is commenced 
for a period of one hundred eighty (180) days. Before such work recommences, a new permit 
shall be first obtained and the fee, therefore, shall be one-half the amount required for a new 
permit for such work, provided no changes have been made or will be made in the original 
construction documents for such work, and provided further that suspension or abandonment has 
not exceeded one year. In order to renew action on a permit after expiration, the permittee shall 
pay a new full permit fee. 
 

(32) Section 106.5.2 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

106.5.2 Fee Schedule. The fees for mechanical work shall be as indicated in Table 17-6  
Mechanical Permit Fees. 
 

(43) Table 17-6 Mechanical Permit Fees. 
 

TABLE 17-6 MECHANICAL PERMIT FEESACTION FEE 
Permit Issuance and Heaters  
For the issuance of each mechanical permit $23.50 
For issuing each supplemental permit for which the original permit has not 
expired, been canceled or finaled 

$7.25 

Unit Fee Schedule (In addition to required permits as listed above.)  
Furnaces   
For the installation or relocation of each forced air or gravity type furnace or 
burner, including ducts and vents attached to such appliance, up to and 
including 100,000 Btu/h (29.3 kW) 

$15.00 

For the installation or relocation of each forced air or gravity type furnace or 
burner, including ducts and vents attached to such appliance over 100,000 
Btu/h (29.3 kW) 

$18.00 

For the installation or relocation of each floor furnace, including vent $15.00 
For the installation or relocation of each suspended heater, recessed wall 
heater or floor mounted unit heater  

$15.00 

Appliance Vents   
For the installation, relocation or replacement of each appliance vent installed 
and not included in an appliance permit 

$7.00 

Repairs or Additions  
For the repair of, alteration of, or addition to each heating appliance, 
refrigeration unit, cooling unit, absorption unit, or each heating, cooling, 

$14.00 



2012 International Building Code Ordinance 
Page 13 of 19 

TABLE 17-6 MECHANICAL PERMIT FEESACTION FEE 
absorption or evaporative cooling system, including installation of controls 
regulated by the Mechanical Code 
Boilers, Compressors and Absorption Systems  
For the installation or relocation of each boiler or compressor to and 
including 3 horsepower (10.6 kW), or each absorption system to and 
including 100,000 Btu/h (29.3 kW) 

$15.00 

For the installation or relocation of each boiler or compressor over 3 
horsepower (10.6 kW) to and including 15 horsepower (52.7 kW), or each 
absorption system over 100,000 Btu/h (29.3 kW) to and including 500,000 
Btu/h (146.6 kW) 

$27.00 

For the installation or relocation of each boiler or compressor over 15 
horsepower (52.7 kW) to and including 30 horsepower (105.5 kW), or each 
absorption system over 500,000 Btu/h (146.6 kW) to and including 1,000,000 
Btu/h (293.1 kW) 

$37.00 

For the installation or relocation of each boiler or compressor over 30 
horsepower (105.5 kW) to and including 50 horsepower (176 kW), or each 
absorption system over 1,000,000 Btu/h (293.1 kW) to and including 
1,750,000 Btu/h (512.9 kW) 

$55.00 

For the installation or relocation of each boiler or compressor over 50 
horsepower (176 kW), or each absorption system over 1,750,000 Btu/h (512.9 
kW) 

$93.00 

Air Handling  
For each air handling unit to and including 10,000 cubic feet per minute (cfm) 
(4719 Us), including ducts attached thereto 
Note: This fee does not apply to an air handling unit which is a portion of a 
factory assembled appliance, cooling unit, evaporative cooler or absorption 
unit for which a permit is required elsewhere in the Mechanical Code.   

$11.00 

For each air handling unit over 10,000 cfm (4719 Us) $18.00 
Evaporative Coolers   
For each evaporative cooler other than portable type $11.00 
Ventilation and Exhaust  
For each ventilation fan connected to a single duct $7.00 
For each ventilation system which is not a portion of any heating or air 
conditioning system authorized by a permit 

$11.00 

For the installation of each hood which is served by mechanical exhaust, 
including the ducts for such hood 

$11.00 

Incinerators  
For the installation or relocation of each domestic type incinerator $18.00 
For the installation or relocation of each commercial or industrial type 
incinerator  

$15.00 

Gas Piping Systems  
For each gas piping system of one to five outlets $5.00 
For each additional outlet over five, each  $1.00 
Miscellaneous  
For each appliance or piece of equipment regulated by the Mechanical Code 
but not classed in other appliance categories, or for which the fee is listed in 
the table  

$11.00 

Other Inspection and Fees Refer to Table 17-2.  
 
(54) Section 106.5.3 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

106.5.3 Fee Refunds. The building official shall authorize the refunding of fees as follows: 
1. The full amount of any fee paid hereunder which was erroneously paid or collected. 



2012 International Building Code Ordinance 
Page 14 of 19 

2. Not more than 80 percent of the permit fee paid when no work has been done under a 
permit issued in accordance with this code. 
3. Not more than 80 percent of the plan review fee paid when an application for a permit for 
which a plan review fee has been paid is withdrawn or canceled before any plan reviewing is 
done. 
The building official shall not authorize refunding of any fee paid except on written application 
filed by the original permittee not later than 180 days after the date of fee payment. 
 

(65) Section 108.1 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

108.1 Unlawful Acts. It shall be unlawful for a person, firm or corporation to erect, construct, 
enlarge, alter, repair, move, improve, remove, convert, demolish or utilize a mechanical system, 
or cause the same to be done, in conflict with or in violation of any of the provisions of this code. 
Each separate day or any portion thereof, during which any violation of this code occurs or 
continues, shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 
 

(76) Section 202 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

SUBSTANTIALLY REMODELED. Substantially Remodeled is any alteration or restoration of a 
building exceeding 60 percent of the assessed valuation of such building within a twelve-month 
period. 
 

(87) Section 901.5 is hereby added to read as follows: 
 

901.5 Solid Fuel Burning Devices. No used fuel-burning device shall be installed in new or 
existing buildings unless such device is United States Environmental Protection Agency certified 
or a pellet stove either certified or exempt from certification by the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency. EXCEPTION: antique wood cook stoves and heaters manufactured prior to 
1940. 

 
Section Nine.  Oak Harbor Municipal Code Section 17.12.020, last adopted by §3 of Ordinance 
1599 in 2011 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
17.12.020 Applicability of Uniform Plumbing Code. 
The most recent edition of the Uniform Plumbing Code, as published by the International 
Association of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials and as adopted by the Washington State 
Building Code Council under the provisions of RCW 19.27 as amended herein is in effect in the 
City of Oak Harbor. One copy of the document listed in this section shall be on file in the office 
of the city clerk for examination by the public. The copy of codes on file may be placed by the 
city clerk in the custody of the office of the building official in order to make them more readily 
available for inspection and use by the general public. 
 
 
Section Ten. A new chapter of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code, Chapter 17.15, International 
Energy Conservation Code, Residential Provisions, is hereby adopted to read as follows: 
 

Chapter 17.15 
INTERNATIONAL ENERGY CONSERVATION CODE, RESIDENTIAL PROVISIONS   

Sections: 



2012 International Building Code Ordinance 
Page 15 of 19 

17.15.010 Title. 
17.15.020 Applicability of International Energy Conservation Code, Residential 

Provisions. 
17.15.030 Administration and enforcement – Rules and regulations. 
17.15.040 Administration and enforcement – Building official authority. 
17.15.050 Notices. 
17.15.060 Liability limitations. 
17.15.070 Penalties. 
17.15.080 Severability. 
17.15.090 Hearing examiner to function as appeals board. 
 

17.15.010 Title. 
This chapter shall be known as the International Energy Conservation Code, Residential 
Provisions of the city of Oak Harbor.  

17.15.020 Applicability of International Energy Conservation Code, Residential 
Provisions. 
The most recent version of the International Energy Conservation Code, Residential Provisions, 
as adopted by the Washington State Building Code Council under the provisions of Chapter 
19.27A RCW, is in effect in the City of Oak Harbor and shall be the city's energy code. One 
copy of the International Energy Conservation Code, Residential Provisions, shall be filed in the 
office of the city clerk for examination by the public. The copy of codes on file may be placed by 
the city clerk in the custody of the office of the building official in order to make them more 
readily available for inspection and use by the general public. 
 
17.15.030 Administration and enforcement – Rules and regulations. 
The city council may upon notice and hearing promulgate such rules and regulations as may be 
necessary to the effective and efficient administration of the code.  

17.15.040 Administration and enforcement – Building official authority. 
The International Energy Conservation Code, Residential Provisions shall be administered and 
enforced by the city building official.  

17.15.050 Notices. 
It is unlawful for any person to remove, mutilate, destroy or conceal any lawful notice issued or 
posted by the building official pursuant to the provisions of this code.  

17.15.060 Liability limitations. 
Nothing contained in this chapter or in the International Energy Conservation Code, Residential 
Provisions, is intended to be, nor shall be, construed to create or form the basis for any liability 
on the part of the city or its officers, employees or agents, for any injury or damage resulting 
from the failure of a building to conform to the provisions of the International Energy 
Conservation Code, Residential Provisions.  

17.15.070 Penalties. 
(1) It shall be unlawful for a person, firm or corporation to erect, construct, enlarge, alter, 

repair, move, improve, remove, convert or demolish, equip, use, occupy or maintain any 
building, structure or building service equipment or cause or permit the same to be done 



2012 International Building Code Ordinance 
Page 16 of 19 

in violation of this chapter or the technical codes. 
 
(2) Civil Violation. Except as provided in subsections (4) and (5) of this section, any 

violation of any of the provisions of this chapter or of the technical codes constitutes a 
civil violation as provided for in Chapter 1.28 OHMC, for which a monetary penalty may 
be imposed as provided therein. 

 
  (3) Criminal Penalty. In addition to or as an alternative to any other penalty provided in this 

chapter or by law, any person who intentionally or knowingly violates any of the 
provisions of this chapter or the technical codes shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and 
upon conviction shall be punishable by a fine of up to $1,000 or a jail sentence of up to 
90 days in jail, or both such fine and jail time. 

 
(4) Violations of Orders under This Chapter. Any person constructing, repairing, operating, 

maintaining, changing an occupancy, occupying or moving a building, structure, 
occupancy, or premises contrary to the provisions of this chapter who continues to 
construct, repair, operate, maintain, change occupancy, occupy or move such building, 
structure, occupancy or premises when ordered by the building official to desist from 
violating a provision or provisions of this chapter shall be guilty of a misdemeanor 
punishable by a fine of up to $1,000 or a jail sentence of up to 90 days, or both such fine 
and jail time. 

 
(5) Separate Offense. Each day or portion thereof upon which a violation occurs constitutes a 

separate offense under subsections (1), (2), (3) and (4) of this section. 
 
(6) Destruction of Notice. It shall be unlawful for any person to remove, mutilate, destroy or 

conceal any notice issued and posted by the building official pursuant to the provisions of 
this chapter or the building code which violations shall be a civil offense as described in 
subsection (2) of this section.   

17.15.080 Severability. 
Should any section, paragraph, sentence or word of this chapter or codes hereby adopted be 
declared for any reason to be invalid, it is the intent of the city council that it would have passed 
all other portions of this chapter and of the codes hereby adopted independent of the elimination 
herefrom of any such portions as may be declared invalid and accordingly such declaration of 
invalidity shall not affect the validity of this chapter as a whole nor any part hereof other than the 
part so declared to be invalid.  

17.15.090 Hearing examiner to function as appeals board. 
All references to the term "board of appeal(s)" shall deem to mean the hearing examiner as per 
OHMC 18.40.180. Permits under this chapter shall be Type I review process as per OHMC 
18.20.230. Appeals of decisions of applicable codes adopted under this chapter shall be to the 
hearing examiner. 
 
 
Section Eleven.  A new chapter of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code, Chapter 17.16, 
“International Energy Conservation Code, Commercial Provisions”, is hereby adopted to read as 



2012 International Building Code Ordinance 
Page 17 of 19 

follows: 
 

Chapter 17.16 
INTERNATIONAL ENERGY CONSERVATION CODE, COMMERCIAL PROVISIONS 

Sections: 
17.16.010 Title. 
17.16.020 Applicability of International Energy Conservation Code, Commercial 

Provisions. 
17.16.030 Administration and enforcement – Rules and regulations. 
17.16.040 Administration and enforcement – Building official authority. 
17.16.050 Notices. 
17.16.060 Liability limitations. 
17.16.070 Penalties. 
17.16.080 Severability. 
17.16.090 Hearing examiner to function as appeals board. 
 

17.16.010 Title. 
This chapter shall be known as the International Energy Conservation Code, Commercial 
Provisions of the city of Oak Harbor.  

17.16.020 Applicability of International Energy Conservation Code, Commercial 
Provisions. 
The most recent version of the International Energy Conservation Code, Commercial Provisions, 
as adopted by the Washington State Building Code Council under the provisions of Chapter 
19.27A RCW, is in effect in the City of Oak Harbor and shall be the city's energy code. One 
copy of the International Energy Conservation Code, Commercial Provisions, shall be filed in 
the office of the city clerk for examination by the public. The copy of codes on file may be 
placed by the city clerk in the custody of the office of the building official in order to make them 
more readily available for inspection and use by the general public. 
 
17.16.030 Administration and enforcement – Rules and regulations. 
The city council may upon notice and hearing promulgate such rules and regulations as may be 
necessary to the effective and efficient administration of the code.  

17.16.040 Administration and enforcement – Building official authority. 
The International Energy Conservation Code, Commercial Provisions shall be administered and 
enforced by the city building official.  

17.16.050 Notices. 
It is unlawful for any person to remove, mutilate, destroy or conceal any lawful notice issued or 
posted by the building official pursuant to the provisions of this code.  

17.16.060 Liability limitations. 
Nothing contained in this chapter or in the International Energy Conservation Code, Commercial 
Provisions, is intended to be, nor shall be, construed to create or form the basis for any liability 
on the part of the city or its officers, employees or agents, for any injury or damage resulting 



2012 International Building Code Ordinance 
Page 18 of 19 

from the failure of a building to conform to the provisions of the International Energy 
Conservation Code, Commercial Provisions.  

17.16.070 Penalties. 
(1) It shall be unlawful for a person, firm or corporation to erect, construct, enlarge, alter, 

repair, move, improve, remove, convert or demolish, equip, use, occupy or maintain any 
building, structure or building service equipment or cause or permit the same to be done 
in violation of this chapter or the technical codes. 

 
(2) Civil Violation. Except as provided in subsections (4) and (5) of this section, any 

violation of any of the provisions of this chapter or of the technical codes constitutes a 
civil violation as provided for in Chapter 1.28 OHMC, for which a monetary penalty may 
be imposed as provided therein. 

 
  (3) Criminal Penalty. In addition to or as an alternative to any other penalty provided in this 

chapter or by law, any person who intentionally or knowingly violates any of the 
provisions of this chapter or the technical codes shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and 
upon conviction shall be punishable by a fine of up to $1,000 or a jail sentence of up to 
90 days in jail, or both such fine and jail time. 

 
(4) Violations of Orders under This Chapter. Any person constructing, repairing, operating, 

maintaining, changing an occupancy, occupying or moving a building, structure, 
occupancy, or premises contrary to the provisions of this chapter who continues to 
construct, repair, operate, maintain, change occupancy, occupy or move such building, 
structure, occupancy or premises when ordered by the building official to desist from 
violating a provision or provisions of this chapter shall be guilty of a misdemeanor 
punishable by a fine of up to $1,000 or a jail sentence of up to 90 days, or both such fine 
and jail time. 

 
(5) Separate Offense. Each day or portion thereof upon which a violation occurs constitutes a 

separate offense under subsections (1), (2), (3) and (4) of this section. 
 
(6) Destruction of Notice. It shall be unlawful for any person to remove, mutilate, destroy or 

conceal any notice issued and posted by the building official pursuant to the provisions of 
this chapter or the building code which violations shall be a civil offense as described in 
subsection (2) of this section.   

17.16.080 Severability. 
Should any section, paragraph, sentence or word of this chapter or codes hereby adopted be 
declared for any reason to be invalid, it is the intent of the city council that it would have passed 
all other portions of this chapter and of the codes hereby adopted independent of the elimination 
herefrom of any such portions as may be declared invalid and accordingly such declaration of 
invalidity shall not affect the validity of this chapter as a whole nor any part hereof other than the 
part so declared to be invalid.  

17.16.090 Hearing examiner to function as appeals board. 
All references to the term "board of appeal(s)" shall deem to mean the hearing examiner as per 
OHMC 18.40.180. Permits under this chapter shall be Type I review process as per OHMC 



2012 International Building Code Ordinance 
Page 19 of 19 

18.20.230. Appeals of decisions of applicable codes adopted under this chapter shall be to the 
hearing examiner. 
 
Section Twelve.  Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 17.22.020 last adopted by §17 of 
Ordinance 1514 in 2007 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
17.22.020 Document adopted by reference. 
The 2006 Edition of the International Property Maintenance Code, as published by the International Code 
Council, is adopted by reference with the deletions, additions, and exceptions as set out in this chapter and 
shall be the city's property maintenance code. One copy of each document listed in this section shall be 
filed in the office of the city clerk for examination by the public. The copy of codes on file may be 
placed by the city clerk in the custody of the office of the building official in order to make them 
more readily available for inspection and use by the general public. 
 
Section Thirteen.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any 
person or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the Ordinance or the application of the 
provision to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 
 
Section Fourteen.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five days 
after publishing. 
 
PASSED by the City Council this ______ day of ___________________ 2013. 
 
       CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 
       _______________________________ 
       SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 
       
Attest:       Approved as to Form: 
 
 
________________________   _______________________________ 
Valerie J. Loffler, City Clerk   Grant K. Weed, Interim City Attorney 
 
Introduction: June 18, 2013 
Adopted: July 2, 2013 
Published:  
 
 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 1661 - Page 1 of 14 

ORDINANCE NO. 1661 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR AMENDING TITLE 8 “FIRE” OF THE 
OAK HARBOR MUNICIPAL CODE TO ADOPT THE 2012 INTERNATIONAL FIRE 
CODES WITH SPECIFIC PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor is authorized to adopt ordinances for the general welfare of 
its citizens; and 

WHEREAS the Washington State Building Code Act requires local jurisdictions to enforce the 
State Building and within its jurisdiction; and 

WHEREAS, the Washington State Building Code Council has adopted amendments to the 2012 
International Fire Codes; and 

WHEREAS, the City is further authorized to adopt and enforce fire codes and to adopt and 
amend provisions of the State fire codes under Chapter 19.27 of the Revised Code of 
Washington; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council deems adoption of this ordinance to be in the best interest of its 
citizens; 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR do ordain as follows: 

Section One. Oak Harbor Municipal Code Section 8.03.070, last adopted by §1 of Ordinance 
1596 in 2010 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

8.03.070 Amendment – Additions. 

The following sections of the International Fire Code as adopted in OHMC 8.03.020 are 
amended to read as follows: 

(1)  Section 101.1 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 101.1 Title. These regulations shall be known as the Fire Code of the City of Oak Harbor, 
hereinafter referred to as “this code.” 

(2)  Section 103.1 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 103.1 General. The Department of Fire Prevention, also known as the Oak Harbor Fire 
Department, is established within the City of Oak Harbor under the direction of the fire 
chief. The function of the department shall be the implementation, administration and 
enforcement of the provisions of this code. 

(3)  Section 105.1.1 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 105.1.1 Permits Required. Operational Permits as described in Section 105.1.2(1) as 
required by this code shall be obtained from the fire chief code official. Permit fees, if 
any, shall be as set forth in Section 8.06.010. Fees shall be paid prior to issuance of the 

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor08/OakHarbor0803.html#8.03.020
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor08/OakHarbor0806.html#8.06.010


ORDINANCE NO. 1661 - Page 2 of 14 

permit. Construction Permits as described in Section 105.1.2(2) as required by this code 
shall be obtained from the fire chief code official. Permit fees, if any, shall be as set forth 
in Section 8.06.010, and shall be paid prior to issuance of the permit. Issued permits shall 
be kept on the premises designated therein at all times and shall be readily available for 
inspection by the fire chief code official. 

(4)  Section 108.1 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 108.1 Board of Appeals Established. All references to the term “Board of Appeal(s)” 
shall be deemed to mean the hearing examiner as per OHMC 18.40.180. Permits under 
this chapter shall be Type I review process as per OHMC 18.20.230. Appeals of 
decisions of applicable codes adopted under this chapter shall be to the hearing examiner. 

(5)  The following definitions shall apply to the 2009  Edition of the International Fire Code and 
supersede other definitions of the same term therein: 

 “Chief of the bureau of fire prevention” shall mean the person or persons who are 
assigned by the Chief of the Oak Harbor Fire Department to perform the duties of the fire 
marshal under the supervision of the chief of the Oak Harbor Fire Department. The Chief 
of the Oak Harbor Fire Department may appoint any career civil service member of the 
Oak Harbor Fire Department to fulfill any or all of the duties of the chief of the bureau of 
fire prevention, or fire marshal, or fire code official. 

 “Jurisdiction” shall be referred to as the City of Oak Harbor. 

 “Appeal Board” shall refer to the hearing examiner as provided under OHMC Title 18. 

(6)  Section 501.4 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 501.4 Timing of Installation. When fire apparatus access roads or a water supply for fire 
protection is required to be installed, such protection shall be installed and made 
serviceable prior to issuance of any building permit for the project, except grading 
permits, except when approved alternative methods of protection are provided. 
Temporary street signs shall be installed at each street intersection when construction of 
new roadways allows passage by vehicles in accordance with Section 505.2. 

(7)  Section 503 Fire apparatus access roads shall be provided and maintained in accordance with 
Sections  

 503.1.1 through 503.6 of the International Fire Code. 

(7)(8)  Section 503.2.9 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 503.2.9 Distance from Structures. Fire apparatus access roadways shall be a minimum of 
5 feet away from the exterior wall of structures, or as otherwise required due to 
construction type. 

(8)(9)  Section 503.7 is hereby added to read as follows: 

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor08/OakHarbor0806.html#8.06.010
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor18/OakHarbor1840.html#18.40.180
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor18/OakHarbor1820.html#18.20.230
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor18/OakHarbor18.html#18


ORDINANCE NO. 1661 - Page 3 of 14 

 503.7 Enforcement. Enforcement of Section 503.1.4 of the International Fire Code shall 
be the responsibility of the City Fire Department which shall have the authority to 
impound or otherwise cause such obstruction to be removed, and said remedies shall be 
in addition to the criminal penalties provided in the Oak Harbor Municipal Code. 

(9)(10)  Section 507.5.1 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 Section 507.5.1 Where Required. Where a portion of the facility or building hereafter 
constructed or moved into or within the jurisdiction is more than 150 feet from a hydrant 
on a fire apparatus access road, as measured by an approved route around the exterior of 
the facility or building, on-site fire hydrants and mains shall be provided where required 
by the fire code official. 

EXCEPTIONS: 

1.  For Group R-3 and U occupancies, the distance requirement shall be 600 feet (183 m). 

2.  For buildings equipped throughout with an approved automatic sprinkler system 
installed in accordance with Section 903.3.1.1 or 903.3.1.2, the distance requirement shall 
be 600 feet (183 m). 

(10)(11)  Section 903.3.7 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 903.3.7 Fire Department Connections. The location of fire department connections shall 
be approved by the fire code official. A fire department connection shall be located 
within 50 feet of a fire hydrant. 

(11)(12)  Section 3301.1.3 5601.1.3. is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 3301.1.3 5601.1.3 Fireworks. The possession, manufacture, storage, sale, handling and 
use of fireworks are prohibited. 

EXCEPTIONS: 

1. The use of fireworks for display as allowed in section 3308 5608. 

2. The possession, storage, sale, handling and use of specific types of Division 1.4G 
fireworks where allowed by applicable laws, ordinances and regulation, provided such 
fireworks comply with CPSC 16 CFR, Parts 1500 and 1507, and DOTn 49 CFR, Parts 
100-178, for consumer fireworks. 

3. Manufacture of fireworks within the jurisdictional area is prohibited. 

4. Except as hereinafter provided, it shall be unlawful for any person to possess, store, 
or offer for sale, expose for sale, sell at retail, or use or explode any fireworks. 

a)  The fire chief code official shall have power to adopt reasonable rules and 
regulations for the granting of permits for supervised and public displays of 



ORDINANCE NO. 1661 - Page 4 of 14 

fireworks by a jurisdiction, fair associations, amusement parks, and other 
organization or for the use of fireworks by artisans in pursuit of their trade. Every 
such use or display shall be handled by a competent operator approved by the 
chief fire code official and every operator shall have first obtained a State License 
pursuant to RCW 70.77.305. The display shall be of such character and so 
located, discharged or fired as in the opinion of the chief fire code official after 
proper investigation so as not to be hazardous to property or endanger any person. 

b)  The fire chief code official  shall make a recommendation to the City Council 
concerning the issuance of permits for the sale of fireworks to persons, 
corporations, or organizations, after investigation and his/her determination that 
the location where the fireworks are to be sold is not hazardous to property or 
endangers any person and that the persons in charge of selling the fireworks are 
competent and trained to handle such fireworks. No person under the age of 18 
shall be employed by the permittee in connection with such sale. 

c)  The provisions of Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 5.32 shall remain in 
full force and effect and nothing herein shall be construed as repealing the same. 

5. Applications for permits shall be made in writing at least 10 days in advance of the 
date of the display in a manner prescribed by the  chief fire code official. After such 
privilege shall be granted, sale, possession, use and distribution of fireworks for such 
display shall be lawful for that purpose only. No permit granted hereunder shall be 
transferable. 

6. Fireworks may be sold, purchased, issued, fired, or discharged in the City, except as 
provided in Paragraphs (11), (12), (13) and (14) below, as follows: 

a)  It is legal to sell and purchase consumer fireworks within the City from twelve 
o’clock noon to eleven o’clock p.m. on the twenty-eighth of June, from nine 
o’clock a.m. to eleven o’clock p.m. on each day from the twenty-ninth of June 
through the fourth of July, from nine o’clock a.m. to nine o’clock p.m. on the fifth 
of July, from twelve o’clock noon to eleven o’clock p.m. on each day from the 
twenty-seventh of December through the thirty-first of December each year, and 
as provided in RCW 70.77.311. 

b)  Consumer fireworks may be used or discharged each day between the hours of 
twelve o’clock noon and eleven o’clock p.m. on the twenty-eighth of June and 
between the hours of nine o’clock a.m. and eleven o’clock p.m. on the twenty-
ninth of June to the third of July, and on July Fourth between the hours of nine 
o’clock a.m. and twelve o’clock midnight, and between the hours of nine o’clock 
a.m. and eleven o’clock p.m. on July fifth, and from six o’clock p.m. on 
December thirty-first until one o’clock a.m. on January first of the subsequent 
year, and as provided in RCW 70.77.311. 

Nothing in this ordinance shall be construed as modifying, repealing or in any way 
affecting the ordinance regulating noise or nuisance. 

http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=70.77.305
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor05/OakHarbor0532.html#5.32
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=70.77.311
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=70.77.311


ORDINANCE NO. 1661 - Page 5 of 14 

7. Approved “No Smoking” signs shall be posted at conspicuous locations on all four 
sides of the fireworks stand or structure and such other places as may be designated by 
the inspecting authority. Each sign shall have the words “NO SMOKING BY ORDER 
OF THE FIRE MARSHAL” in red letters not less than two inches in height on white 
background. All signs shall be maintained in a legible condition. 

8. Smoking and the discharge of fireworks shall be prohibited within 25 feet of any 
building or stand in which fireworks are sold at retail or stored after hours. 

9. Each retail fireworks location shall have at least two water-type extinguishers of at 
least two and one-half gallon capacity. 

10. There shall be no accumulation of dry grass, paper, cardboard, trash, lumber or other 
combustibles within 100 feet of any retail fireworks outlet. 

11. Temporary structures or stands used for the retail sale of fireworks shall be removed 
from the premises within one week after the sale of such fireworks ends as regulated by 
RCW 70.77.311. Any such stand or structure remaining beyond one week may be 
removed by the regulating authority at the expense of the permittee or owner. 

12. Fireworks shall not be sold or given to minor children under the age of sixteen. 

13. It shall be unlawful to use, fire, or discharge any fireworks along the route of and 
during any parade or at any place of public assembly or in any commercial use district. 

14. It shall be unlawful at any time to throw or toss any fireworks at any person, animal, 
vehicle or other thing or object. 

(12)(13)  Section 3301.2.3 5601.2.3 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

3301.2.3 5601.2.3 Permit Restrictions. The fire code official is authorized to limit the quantity of 
explosives, explosive materials permitted at a given location. Permit restrictions for 
fireworks shall be as described in section 3301.1.3. 5601.2.3 No person, possessing a 
permit for storage of explosives at any place, shall keep or store an amount greater than 
authorized in such permit. Only the kind of explosive specified in such permit shall be 
kept or stored. 

(13)(14)  Section 3804.2 6104.2 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

3804.2 6104.2 Maximum Capacity within Established Limits. Within the limits established by 
law restricting the storage of liquefied petroleum gas for the protection of heavily 
populated or congested areas, the aggregate capacity of any one installation shall not 
exceed a water capacity of 2,000 gallons in all areas within the City of Oak Harbor 
except as zoned industrial. 

 EXCEPTION:  In particular installations, this capacity limit shall be determined by the 
fire code official, after consideration of special features such as topographical conditions. 

http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=70.77.311


ORDINANCE NO. 1661 - Page 6 of 14 

Section Two. Oak Harbor Municipal Code Section 08.03.080, last adopted by §1 of Ordinance 
1596 in 2010 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

8.03.080 Penalties. 

(1)  It shall be unlawful for a person, firm or corporation to erect, construct, enlarge, alter, repair, 
move, improve, remove, convert or demolish, equip, use, occupy or maintain any building, 
structure or building service equipment or cause or permit the same to be done in violation of 
this chapter and/or Chapter 8.05 OHMC as now in effect or hereafter amended or added to, or 
the technical codes. 

(2)  Civil Violation. Except as provided in subsection (5) of this section, any violation of any of 
the provisions of this chapter and/or Chapter 8.05 OHMC as now in effect or hereafter amended 
or added to, or of the technical codes, constitutes a civil violation as provided for in Chapter 1.28 
OHMC, for which a monetary penalty may be imposed as provided therein and not to exceed 
$250.00. 

(3)  Criminal Penalty. In addition to or as an alternative to any other penalty provided in this 
chapter or by law, any person who intentionally or knowingly violates any of the provisions of 
this chapter and/or Chapter 8.05 OHMC as now in effect or as hereafter amended or added to, or 
the technical codes, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punishable by 
a fine of up to $1,000 or a jail sentence of up to 90 days, or both such fine and jail time. 

(4)  Violations of Orders by the Fire chief fire code official. Persons operating or maintaining an 
occupancy, premises or vehicle subject to the International Fire Code who allow a hazard to exist 
or fail to take immediate action to abate a hazard on such occupancy, premises or vehicle when 
ordered to do so by the fire chief code official shall be guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by a 
fine of up to $1,000 or a jail sentence of up to 90 days, or both such fine and jail time. 

(5)  Separate Offense. Each day or portion thereof upon which a violation occurs constitutes a 
separate offense under subsections (1), (2), (3) and (4) of this section. 

(6)  Destruction of Notice. It shall be unlawful for any person to remove, mutilate, destroy or 
conceal any notice issued and posted by the fire official pursuant to the provisions of this chapter 
or the fire code which violations shall be a civil offense as described in subsection (2) of this 
section. 

Section Three. Oak Harbor Municipal Code Section 08.05.040, last adopted by §5 of Ordinance 
1379 in 2004 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

8.05.040 Fire flow requirements for buildings. 

(1)  Scope. This is the procedure for determining fire flow requirements for all buildings or 
portions of buildings. Fire flow is the quantity of water in gallons per minute needed to control 
an anticipated fire in a building or group of buildings. Fire flow shall be determined in 
accordance with Section 508 507 of the IFC International Fire Code and Appendix B of the IFC 
International Fire Code. 

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor08/OakHarbor0805.html#8.05
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor08/OakHarbor0805.html#8.05
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor01/OakHarbor0128.html#1.28
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor08/OakHarbor0805.html#8.05


ORDINANCE NO. 1661 - Page 7 of 14 

(2)  Calculations shall be recorded on a form by the fire chief code official, or his designee, and 
made available for verification by the developer. 

(3)  Calculations shall depend on development variables which include, but are not limited to, 
type of construction, building height, roofing, materials and processes housed, and 
configurations of exposed areas. The fire chief code official shall determine whether or not a 
variable condition exists presenting additional hazards. The decision shall be made in accordance 
with nationally recognized standards for fire protection.  

Section Five.  Oak Harbor Municipal Code Section 08.05.060, last adopted by §3 of Ordinance 
1515 in 2007 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

8.05.060 Automatic fire sprinkler requirements. 

(1)  All automatic fire sprinkler systems required under this section shall transmit alarms for 
tamper and fire to an approved monitoring station in accordance with nationally recognized 
standards for fire protection. 

(2)  Approved automatic fire sprinkler systems in new buildings and structures shall be provided 
in the locations described in this section. 

(a)  Group A-1. An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided for Group A-1 
occupancies where one of the following conditions exists: 

(i)  The fire area exceeds 10,000 square feet; 

(ii)  The fire area has an occupancy load of 300 or more; 

(iii)  The fire area is located on a floor other than level of exit discharge; or 

(iv)  The fire area contains a multi-theater complex. 

(b)  Group A-2. An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided for Group A-2 
occupancies where one of the following conditions exists: 

(i)  The fire area exceeds 5,000 square feet; 

(ii)  The fire area has an occupancy load of 100 or more; or 

(iii)  The fire area is located on a floor other than level of exit discharge. 

(iv)  Group A-2 nightclubs as defined in the International Fire Code. 

(c)  Group A-3. An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided for Group A-3 
occupancies where one of the following conditions exists: 

(i)  The fire area exceeds 10,000 square feet; 

(ii)  The fire area has an occupancy load of 300 or more; or 



ORDINANCE NO. 1661 - Page 8 of 14 

(iii)  The fire area is located on a floor other than level of exit discharge. 

EXCEPTION: Areas used exclusively as participant sports areas where the main 
floor area is located at the same level as the level of discharge of the main 
entrance and exit. 

(d)  Group A-4. An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided for Group A-4 
occupancies where one of the following conditions exists: 

(i)  The fire area exceeds 10,000 square feet; 

(ii)  The fire area has an occupancy load of 300 or more; or 

(iii)  The fire area is located on a floor other than level of exit discharge. 

Exception: Areas used exclusively as participant sports areas where the main floor 
area is located at the same level as the level of discharge of the main entrance and 
exit. 

(e)  Group A-5. An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided in concession stands, 
retail areas, press boxes, and other accessory use areas in excess of 1,000 square feet. 

(f)  Group B. An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided for Group B occupancies 
where the fire area exceeds 10,000 square feet. 

(g)  Group E. An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided for Group E occupancies 
as follows: 

(i)  Throughout all Group E fire areas greater than 20,000 10,000 square feet in 
area. 

(ii)  Throughout every portion of educational buildings below the level of exit 
discharge. 

(iii)  For the purpose of this section, additions exceeding 60 percent of the value 
of such building or structure, or alterations and repairs to any portion of a building 
or structure within a 12-month period that exceeds 100 percent of the value of 
such building or structure shall be considered new construction. In the case of 
additions, fire walls shall define separate buildings. 

 EXCEPTIONS: 

(i) 1.  Portable school classrooms, provided aggregate area of clusters of portable 
school classrooms does not exceed 5,000 square feet; and clusters of portable 
school classrooms shall be separated as required in Chapter 5 of the International 
Building Code. 



ORDINANCE NO. 1661 - Page 9 of 14 

(ii) 2.  Group E – Day Care. When not required by other provisions of this 
chapter, a fire-extinguishing system installed in accordance with NFPA 13 may be 
used for increases and substitutions allowed in Sections 504.2, 506.3, and Table 
601 of the building code. 

(h)  Group F-1. An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided throughout all buildings 
containing a Group F-1 occupancy where one of the following conditions exists: 

(i)  Where a Group F-1 fire area exceeds 10,000 square feet; 

(ii)  Where a Group F-1 fire area is located more than three stories above grade; or 

(iii)  Where the combined area of all Group F-1 fire areas on all floors, including 
any mezzanines, exceeds 24,000 square feet. 

(iv)  Woodworking Operations. An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided 
throughout all Group F-1 occupancy fire areas that contain woodworking 
operations in excess of 2,500 square feet in area which generate finely divided 
combustible waste or which use finely divided combustible materials. 

(i)  Group F-2. An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided for Group F-2 
occupancies where the fire area exceeds 10,000 square feet. 

(j)  Group H. Automatic sprinkler systems shall be provided in high-hazard occupancies 
as follows: 

(i)  General. An automatic sprinkler system shall be installed in Group H 
occupancies. 

(ii)  Group H-5 Occupancies. An automatic sprinkler system shall be installed 
throughout buildings containing Group H-5 occupancies. The design of the 
sprinkler system shall not be less than that required under the International 
Building Code for the occupancy hazard classifications in accordance with Table 
903.2.4.2 of the International Fire Code. 

Where the design area of the sprinkler system consists of a corridor protected by 
one row of sprinklers, the maximum number of sprinklers required to be 
calculated is 13. 

(iii)  Pyroxylin Plastics. An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided in 
buildings, or portions thereof, where cellulose nitrate film or pyroxylin plastics 
are manufactured, stored or handled in quantities exceeding 100 pounds. 

(k)  Group I. An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided throughout buildings with 
a Group I fire area. 



ORDINANCE NO. 1661 - Page 10 of 14 

EXCEPTION:  An automatic sprinkler system installed in accordance with Section 
903.3.1.2 or 903.3.1.3 of the International Fire Code shall be allowed in Group I-1 
facilities. 

(l)  Group M. An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided throughout buildings 
containing a Group M occupancy where one of the following conditions exists: 

(i)  Where a Group M fire area exceeds 10,000 square feet; 

(ii)  Where a Group M fire area is located more than three stories above grade; or 
plane. 

(iii)  Where the combined area of all Group M fire areas on all floors, including 
any mezzanines, exceeds 24,000 square feet. 

(iv)  A group M occupancy used for the display and sale of upholstered furniture 
or mattresses exceeds 5,000. Square feet (464 m2). 

(iv) (v)  903.2.7.1 High-Piled Storage. An automatic sprinkler system shall be 
provided as required in Chapter 23 32 of the International Fire Code in all 
buildings of Group M where storage of merchandise is in high-piled or rack 
storage arrays. 

(m)  Group R. An automatic sprinkler system installed in accordance with Section 903.3 
of the International Fire Code shall be provided throughout all buildings with a Group R 
fire area. 

(n)  Group S-1. An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided throughout all buildings 
containing a Group S-1 occupancy where one of the following conditions exists: 

(i)  Where a Group S-1 fire area exceeds 10,000 square feet; 

(ii)  Where a Group S-1 fire area is located more than three stories above grade; or 
plane. 

(iii)  Where the combined area of all Group S-1 fire areas on all floors, including 
any mezzanines, exceeds 24,000 square feet. 

(iv)  A Group S-1 occupancy used for storage of upholstered furniture or 
mattresses exceeds 2500 square feet (232 ms). 

Repair Garages.  An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided throughout all 
buildings used as repair garages in accordance with the International Building 
Code, as follows: 

(A)  Buildings with a fire area containing a repair garage exceeding 
10,000 square feet. 



ORDINANCE NO. 1661 - Page 11 of 14 

(B)  Buildings with a repair garage servicing vehicles parked in the 
basement. 

(C)  A group S1 fire area used for the repair of commercial trucks or buses 
where the fire area exceeds 5000 square feet (464 m2).  

Bulk Storage of Tires.  Buildings and structures where the area for the storage of 
tires exceeds 20,000 cubic feet shall be equipped throughout with an automatic 
sprinkler system in accordance with Section 903.3.1.1 of the International Fire 
Code. 

(o)  Group S-2. An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided throughout buildings 
classified as an enclosed parking garage in accordance with Section 406.3 of the 
International Building Code or where located beneath other groups. 

EXCEPTION:  Enclosed parking garages located beneath Group R-3 occupancies. 

(i) 1. Commercial Parking Garages. An automatic sprinkler system shall be 
provided throughout buildings used for storage of commercial trucks or buses 
where the fire area exceeds 5,000 feet. 

(p)  Windowless Stories in All Occupancies. An automatic sprinkler system shall be 
installed in the locations set forth in Sections 903.2.10.1 903.2.11.1 through 903.2.10.1.3 
903.2.11.3 in the International Fire Code. 

EXCEPTION:  Group R-3 and Group U. 

(q)  Rubbish and Linen Chutes. An automatic sprinkler system shall be installed as set 
forth in Section 903.2.10.2 903.3.1.1 of the International Fire Code. 

(r)  Buildings 55 Feet or More in Height. An automatic sprinkler system shall be installed 
as set forth in Section 903.2.10.3 903.2.11.3 of the International Fire Code. 

(s)  During Construction. Automatic sprinkler systems required during construction, 
alteration and demolition operations shall be provided in accordance with Section 1413 
3313 of the International Fire Code. 

(t)  Other Hazards. Automatic sprinkler protection shall be provided for the hazards 
indicated in Sections 903.2.12.1 903.2.11.4 and 903.2.12.2 903.2.11.5 in the International 
Fire Code. 

(u)  Other Required Suppression Systems. In addition to the requirements of Section 
903.2 of the International Fire Code, the provisions indicated in Table 903.2.13 
903.2.11.6 of the International Fire Code also require the installation of a suppression 
system for certain buildings and areas. 

(3)  Installation Requirements. Automatic sprinkler systems shall be designed and installed in 
accordance with Sections 903.3.1 through 903.3.7 of the International Fire Code. 



ORDINANCE NO. 1661 - Page 12 of 14 

(4)  Sprinkler system monitoring and alarms shall meet the requirements in accordance with 
Sections 903.4 of the International Fire Code. 

(5)  Testing and maintenance of sprinkler systems shall meet the requirements in accordance 
with Section 903.5 of the International Fire Code. 

(6)  Existing Buildings. The provisions of this section are intended to provide a reasonable 
degree of safety in existing structures not complying with the minimum requirements of the 
International Building Code by requiring installation of an automatic fire-extinguishing system 
in accordance with Section 903.6 of the International Fire Code.  

Section Six.  Oak Harbor Municipal Code Section 08.05.070, last adopted by §8 of Ordinance 
1379 in 2004 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

8.05.070 Automatic fire detection system requirements. 

(1)  Section 907 of the IFC International Fire Code shall be used as a guide for the installation, 
inspection, and maintenance of an acceptable minimum automatic fire-detection system when 
such system is required by this section, one copy of which is to be filed in the office of the city 
clerk, and by reference made a part of this chapter as if fully set out herein. 

(2)  When approved by the fire chief code official, and not otherwise required by the building or 
fire codes, an approved automatic sprinkler system may be substituted for an automatic fire 
detection system required herein. 

(3)  The following Commercial buildings exceeding 2,500 square feet gross floor area shall be 
equipped, as a minimum, with an automatic and/or manual fire detection system (throughout), 
that shall alert all occupants of the building when fire is detected and shall transmit an alarm for 
fire to a U.L. listed and approved monitoring station. 

(a) Buildings that contain a Group A-1, A-2, A-3, A-4, or A-5 occupancy with an 
occupant load of 50 or more; 
(b) Group B occupancies exceeding 2,500 square feet gross floor area; 
(c) Group E occupancies with an occupant load of 50 or more; 
(d) Group F occupancies exceeding 2,500 square feet gross floor area; 
(e) Group H occupancies; 
(f) Group I occupancies shall be equipped with a manual and automatic fire detection 
system in accordance with the IFC; 
(g) Group M occupancies exceeding 2,500 square feet gross floor area;  
(h) Group R occupancies; 
(i) Group S occupancies exceeding 2,500 square feet gross floor area. 

Section Seven.  Oak Harbor Municipal Code Section 08.05.090, last adopted by §10 of 
Ordinance 1379 in 2004 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

8.05.090 Regulations. 



ORDINANCE NO. 1661 - Page 13 of 14 

The fire chief code official, with approval of the administrator, is authorized to make and enforce 
such rules and regulations as may be necessary to carry out the intent of this chapter. Three 
certified copies of the rules and regulations shall be filed with the clerk and shall be published by 
posting on the public bulletin at City Hall three weeks prior to effective date. Copies of 
regulations shall be available at the fire station upon request. Copies shall be supplied to city 
councilmembers on adoption.  

Section Eight.  Oak Harbor Municipal Code Section 08.05.100, last adopted by §11 of 
Ordinance 1379 in 2004 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

8.05.100 Appeals. 

Whenever the chief fire code official of the department shall disapprove an application or permit 
applied for, or when it is claimed that these provisions do not apply or that the true intent and 
meaning of these provisions have been misconstrued or wrongly interpreted, the applicant may 
appeal the decision to the fire chief code official within 30 days from the date of the decision to 
be appealed. Permits for development under this code are Type I review process. 

Section Nine. Oak Harbor Municipal Code Section 08.10.140, last adopted by Ordinance 1321 
in 2002 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

8.10.140 Fire access – Fire apparatus access roads. 

(1)  Fire apparatus access roads shall be provided for every facility, building or portion of a 
building when any portion of an exterior wall of the first story is located more than 150 feet from 
fire apparatus access as measured by an approved route around the exterior of the building or 
facility. Exceptions: 

(a)  When buildings are completely protected with an approved fire sprinkler system, the 
provisions may be modified by the chief fire code official. 

(b)  When access roads cannot be installed due to location on property, topography, or 
nonnegotiable grades, the chief fire code official may require additional fire protection 
systems. 

(2)  More than one fire apparatus access road shall be required when it is determined by the chief 
fire code official that access by a single road might be impaired by vehicle congestion or other 
factors that could limit access. 

(3)  Fire apparatus access roads shall have an unobstructed width of not less than 20 feet and an 
unobstructed vertical clearance of not less than 13 feet, six inches. Exception: 

(a)  Vertical clearance may be reduced when approved and signs are installed and 
maintained indicating the established vertical clearance. 

(4)  Fire apparatus access roads shall be designed and maintained to support the imposed loads of 
fire apparatus as necessary and shall be provided with an all weather driving surface. Inside the 



ORDINANCE NO. 1661 - Page 14 of 14 

city, a paved surface is required. A time period for paving fire apparatus access roads may be 
established at time of annexation. 

(5)  Fire apparatus access roads shall have a turning radius of not less than 40 feet and a 
maximum grade of 10 percent. 

(6)  Dead-end fire apparatus access roads in excess of 150 feet in length shall be provided with 
approved provisions for turning around of fire apparatus. 

(7)  Bridges used as part of fire apparatus access roads shall be approved and maintained in 
accordance with nationally recognized standards. Vehicle load limits shall be posted at both 
entrances to bridges. 

(8)  Traffic calming devices shall be prohibited unless approved by the fire code official. 

(8)(9)  When required by the chief fire code official, approved signs or other approved notices 
shall be provided and maintained for fire apparatus access roads to identify such roads and 
prohibit obstruction by parking or other obstructions. See general operating provisions. 

Section Ten.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person or 
circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the Ordinance or the application of the provision 
to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 

Section Eleven.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five days after 
publishing. 

PASSED by the City Council this ______ day of ___________________ 2013. 

 CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 
 
 _______________________________ 
 SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 
 
Attest: Approved as to Form: 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Valerie J. Loffler, City Clerk Grant K. Weed, Interim City Attorney 
 
Introduction:  
Adopted: 
Published:  
 



City of Oak Harbor 

City Council Agenda Bill 

 

 Bill No. 9.a. 

 Date: July 2, 2013 
 Subject: Termination of Marina  
  C-Dock Roof Replacement  
  Project – Resolution 13-16 
     
 
FROM: Steve Powers 
 Development Services Director 
 
INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY: 
    Scott Dudley, Mayor 
    Larry Cort, City Administrator 
    Doug Merriman, Finance Director 
    Grant Weed, Interim City Attorney, as to form 
 

PURPOSE 

This agenda bill presents a resolution that if adopted will terminate the City’s efforts to replace the 
damaged C-Dock roof at the Oak Harbor Marina. 
 
AUTHORITY 
RCW 35A.11.020 provides that code city shall have all powers possible for a city or town to have under 
the Constitution of this state, and not specifically denied to code cities by law. These powers may be 
exercised in regard to the improvement and maintenance of real property of all kinds and of structures. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION 

Funds Required: The termination of this project will by itself not require the expenditure of any funds.  
The demolition of the posts, beams and trusses that once supported the roof will require staff time and 
perhaps some minor expenditure for supplies. 
 
Appropriation Source: Marina Fund 410 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT 

More than three years has passed since the western half of the C-Dock roof was damaged in a storm.  
Efforts to design and install a replacement roof have been hampered by fire code compliance difficulties 
and permit problems with other agencies.  The history of this project and its challenges is summarized in 
a memo dated May 21, 2013 (Attachment A).  While the fire code compliance issues have been solved 
(although at a much higher cost than originally estimated), the permit problems still remain.  In short, 
the City cannot replace the roof without (1) having been granted a time extension to the original Marina 



City of Oak Harbor 

City Council Agenda Bill 

 

redevelopment permits, or (2) starting a new permit process with the Corps of Engineers, Department of 
Ecology and Department of Natural Resources.  It is not clear when or if the City’s request for a time 
extension will be approved.  Starting a new permit process will require the hiring of environmental 
and/or engineering consultants to assist with the JARPA process. 

Additionally, decisions regarding the C-Dock roof project should also be made in the context of how 
they fit within the overall Marina Redevelopment Program and in recognition of the age of the facility.  
Simply put, building a brand new roof structure on top of 39 year old floats may not make economic 
sense given the evolution of boating design and preferences. 
 
For the reasons stated above, staff recommends that a new roof not be constructed on that portion of C-
Dock that was damaged in January 2010.  A resolution directing staff to terminate efforts to replace the 
roof and to demolish the remaining support structure is presented for the Council’s consideration 
(Attachment B). 
 
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP 

Staff briefed the Council on this item at the May 29, 2013 City Council workshop. 
 
MARINA ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

On June 3, 2013 the Marina Advisory Committee forwarded a recommendation to the City Council (by 
a vote of 3-0) that the City no longer pursue the replacement of C-Dock roof and that it move forward 
with removing the existing posts and beams.  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Approve Resolution No.13-16 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

A. Marina / C-Dock Roof Project memo dated May 21, 2013 
B. Resolution No. 13-16 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 13-16 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR TERMINATING EFFORTS TO 

REPLACE THE MARINA C-DOCK ROOF 

WHEREAS, in January 2010 a portion of the western half of the Oak Harbor Marina C-Dock 
roof was damaged during a significant wind event; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor originally intended to replace said roof and undertook 
efforts to do so; and  

WHEREAS, those efforts have been hampered due to certain code and permitting challenges; 
and 

WHEREAS, while the code and permitting challenges can be solved, the solutions are 
significantly more costly than originally estimated; and   

WHEREAS, leaving thirteen 40-foot slips uncovered provides a greater number of slips capable 
of handling today’s larger boats and is consistent with the goal of the Marina Redevelopment 
Program to increase the number of larger slips available for moorage; and 

WHEREAS, building a brand new roof structure on top of 39 year old floats is not a wise 
financial or operational decision for the Marina; and 

WHEREAS, the Marina Advisory Committee did on June 3, 2013 forward a recommendation to 
the City Council (by a vote of 3-0) that the City no longer pursue the replacement of C-Dock 
roof and that it move forward with removing the existing posts and beams; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council did consider that recommendation in a public meeting held on July 
2, 2013.   

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor that 
City staff is directed to terminate efforts to replace the western half of the C-Dock Roof damaged 
by a storm event in January 2010 and staff is also directed to take the necessary steps to demolish 
the existing posts, beams and trusses that once supported the roof. 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor and approved by its Mayor this 2nd day
of July, 2013. 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

_____________________________ 
SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 

Attest: Approved as to Form: 

__________________________ _____________________________ 
Valerie J. Loffler, City Clerk  Grant Weed, Interim City Attorney 

ATTACHMENT B















 

July 2, 2013 – North Reservoir – Legal Services 
Page 1 of 2 

 Bill No. 9.b. 
 Date: July 2, 2013    
 Subject: North Reservoir – Amendment  

No. 1 to the Professional    
Services Agreement with Hedeen 
& Caditz, PLLC    

 
FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director 
 Joe Stowell, City Engineer 
  
INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY: 
 
            Scott Dudley, Mayor 
            Larry Cort, City Administrator 
            Doug Merriman, Finance Director 
            Grant Weed, Interim City Attorney, as to form 
 
 
PURPOSE  
The purpose of this agenda bill is to seek a motion authorizing the Mayor to sign Amendment 
No. 1 to the Professional Services Agreement with Hedeen & Caditz, PLLC increasing the 
contract dollar amount from $20,000 to $28,640.  
 
AUTHORITY  
The Oak Harbor Municipal Code states: 
 
2.310.070 Emergency procurements. 
Notwithstanding any other provisions of this chapter, the mayor or his/her designated agent(s) may make 
or authorize others to make emergency procurements of materials, supplies, equipment, services or public 
works, without complying with the requirements of this chapter, when there exists a threat to public 
health, welfare, or safety or where the city may suffer a substantial monetary loss by reason of the time 
required to follow regular purchasing procedures; provided, that such emergency procurements shall be 
made with such competition as is practicable under the circumstances. A written determination of the 
basis for the emergency and for the selection of the particular contractor shall be included in the contract 
file. As soon as practicable, a record of each emergency procurement shall be made and shall set forth 
the contractor’s name, the amount and type of the contract, and a listing of the item(s) procured under 
the contract, which shall be reported to the city council at the next subsequent meeting. (Ord. 1470 § 2, 
2006). 
 
FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION 
Funds Required:              $8,640.00   
Appropriation Source:  Water Fund 401  
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT 
A professional services contract with Hedeen & Caditz was approved by City Council on August 
8, 2012 in the amount of $20,000.  Hedeen & Caditz is a law firm that specializes in construction 

 

City of Oak Harbor 
City Council Agenda Bill 
 



 

July 2, 2013 – North Reservoir – Legal Services 
Page 2 of 2 

projects and provided a legal review of the Project Manual for the North Reservoir Project. 
 
The review was completed and incorporated their comments into the final Project Manual.  Bids 
for the project were opened on April 3, 2013 where Veterans Northwest Construction, LLC. of 
Seattle, WA was the apparent low qualified bidder.  The apparent second lowest qualified bidder, 
T. Bailey, Inc. of Anacortes, WA sent a letter to city staff on April 5, 2013 stating that, according 
to the contractor qualification requirements contained in the North Reservoir Project Manual, 
Veterans Northwest Construction was not a qualified bidder for the project. 
 
Staff did not agree with T. Bailey’s interpretation of the qualification requirements and felt that 
there was potential monetary loss to the City in the form of a formal bid protest, project delay 
and possible legal action.  Because of his early work in reviewing the Project Manual, Arne 
Hedeen of Hedeen & Caditz, LLC was authorized to assist staff by reviewing contractor 
qualification requirements, performing a review of applicable public contracting law and drafting 
a recommendation for awarding the contract.  Upon completion of his review, Mr. Hedeen 
recommended awarding the contract to Veterans Northwest Construction, LLC, the low bidder. 
 
Construction of the North Reservoir has begun and progress to date is good. 
 
PREVIOUS CITY COUNCIL ACTION 
May 7, 2013 – City Council authorized the award of the North Reservoir Project to Veterans 
Northwest construction, LLC, in the amount of $4,486,324.12 plus all applicable taxes; and 
authorized the City Engineer to administratively approve changes to the construction contract 
totaling not more than $200,000.00. 
 
January 15, 2013 – City Council authorized staff to proceed with advertisement of the North 
Reservoir Construction Project for competitive bidding. 
 
August 8, 2012 – City Council authorized the Mayor to execute a professional services 
agreement with Hedeen & Caditz for legal services associated with the North Reservoir Project 
with a not to exceed limit of $20,000. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
A motion authorizing the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 1 to the Professional Services 
Agreement with Hedeen & Caditz, PLLC increasing the contract dollar amount from $20,000 to 
$28,640.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 

 Contract Amendment No. 1 
 April 5, 2013 Letter from T. Bailey, Inc 
 April 24, 2013 Award Recommendation Memo 



 
Amendment No. 1 6/24/2013 Page 1 of 2 
 
C:\Users\vloffler\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\SUCN8JWQ\1_HC - Contract Amendment 
Form.doc 

Professional  Services Agreement 
Amendment Number 1 
 

Organization and Address 
 
City of  Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, WA 98239 
 
Phone: 360-279-4500 

Original Agreement Title: 
Professional Services Agreement 
Hedeen & Caditz, PLLC 

Project Number: 
ENG 06-43-A 

Execution Date 
8-13-2012 

Completion Date (Prior) 
7-31-2013 

Project Title 
North Reservoir 

New Maximum Amount Payable 
 
$ 28,640 

Description of Work 
Legal services related to the North Reservoir Project 
 
 
The City of Oak Harbor           
desires to supplement the agreement entered into with  Hedeen & Caditz, PLLC 
and executed on August 13, 2012 and identified as the North Reservoir Project 
 
All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this 
supplement 
 
The changes to the agreement are described as follows: 
 
SCOPE OF WORK is hereby amended to add the following: 
Review of the bidder responsibility documents related to the award of the North Reservoir 
Project ________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SCOPE OF WORK is hereby changed and supplemented with the following: 
None _________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 



 
Amendment No. 1 6/24/2013 Page 2 of 2 
 
C:\Users\vloffler\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\SUCN8JWQ\1_HC - Contract Amendment 
Form.doc 

PROJECT COMPLETION DATE AMENDED TO: No Change _______________________ 
TIME OF COMPLETION – SCOPE OF SERVICES: No Change ______________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PAYMENT shall be amended as follows:  
Work performed pursuant to this Agreement shall on a time and materials basis not exceed 
$28,640.  ______________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Payment shall be made in accordance with the terms and conditions described in the original 
contract.  
 
If you concur with this amendment and agree to the changes as stated above, please sign in the 
appropriate spaces and return to this office for final action. 
 
 
By:         By:        
 
             
Consultant Signature     Approving Authority Signature 
 
             
         Date 



 
 
 
 
 

 12441 Bartholomew Rd., Anacortes, WA  98221 
(360) 293-0682    FAX (360) 293-3893 

……...………………………………………………………………………… 

 
April 5, 2013 
 
 
City of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, WA 98277 
 
apeterschmidt@oakharbor.org 
 
Attn:  Mr. Arnold Peterschmidt, PE 
 
RE:  North Reservoir Proposal 
 
Mr. Peterschmidt: 
 
We write to you in reference to the North Reservoir project bid dated 4/3/13.  We have serious 
concerns regarding the bid submitted by Veterans NW that we wish to share with the City for its 
consideration.    
 
Special Provision 1-02.2.C.1 requires that Bidders, “Demonstrate successful past experience 
and competence in managing and constructing no less than two (2) similar public works 
construction projects in the last three (3) years. Similar projects may be those involving steel 
erection, tank installation and associated painting, site work, asphalt roadway and utility 
installation.” By using the word “associated” the bid documents make clear that the painting, site 
work, asphalt and utility installation must be in conjunction with steel tank erection, and not 
stand alone projects or part of other unrelated work.  Obviously, it is the bidder, and not their 
subcontractors, that must have completed two (2) similar projects in the last three (3) years.  
 
This Project involves construction of a 4.0MG Reservoir and Foundation, with all associated 
systems and coatings plus extensive sitework, site piping and complex paving systems. In 
reviewing the qualifications offered by Veterans NW we noted that they listed a Child 
Development Center, a $12 MM track refurbishment project, and a heating oil tank replacement. 
None of these projects involve steel tank erection. Their submittal does not reflect that they 
have ever erected any steel tanks, much less two similar projects in the last three years. 
Because they have erected zero (0) steel tanks, they have also done zero associated work. 
They quite literally have no experience in steel tank erection and associated work.  
 
In contrast we have erected the following similar projects in the last three years: 
 

·         #919 640 Zone Reservoir, 4.0 MG, 2010-2011 
·         #886 Roads End Reservoir, 4.25 MG, 2008-2009 
·         #884 Peterson Point Reservoir, 4.0 MG, 2008 

 
If we go further back in our resume, T BAILEY has completed many more tanks well exceeding 
the minimum volume criteria.  We have also completed numerous Gray & Osborne designed 
projects.  T BAILEY most typically performed and managed site earthwork, piping, foundation 
and tank work with its in-house expert personnel. 
 



City of Oak Harbor 
Re:  North Reservoir Proposal 
Attn:  Mr. Arnold Peterschmidt, PE 
4/05/13 
Page 2 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

We also noted that Veterans NW failed to verify responsibility criteria for each of the first tier 
subcontractors as required by the bid documents.  Specifically, they did not provide any 
documentation relating to site work/site, utilities, piping, paving, concrete, electrical or controls 
subcontractors.  There is no indication that Veterans NW self performs these major critical 
components of the project as enumerated in Special Provision 1-02.1 A (last paragraph starting 
with “Additionally…”). 

 
Having identified the criteria by which it would review the bids we trust the City will give due 
consideration to these major points and consider Veterans NW a non-responsible and 
unqualified bidder. 
 
 
Best regards. 
 
T BAILEY, INC.  
www.tbailey.com 
   
 
 
Gene Tanaka, Founder 
President/CEO 
 



 

 

Memorandum 
 
 
TO: Cathy Rosen 
 Public Works Director 
  
FROM: Arnie Peterschmidt, P.E. 
 Project Engineer 
 
SUBJECT:         Oak Harbor North Reservoir Project Bid  
 Bid Evaluation and Award Recommendation 
  
 
DATE: April 24, 2013 
 
 
The Project 
 
As you are aware, the Washington State Department of Health (WSDOH) is the primary regulator of 
public water systems in the State.  WSDOH requires that public water systems have adequate physical, 
financial and managerial capacity to serve existing and anticipated future customers.  WSDOH requires 
water systems demonstrate adequate capacities to serve additional water customers.  Oak Harbor is a 
growing community and the Water Utility needs additional water storage capacity to serve current and 
future customers and in order to remain in compliance with DOH standards.  
 
This need for additional water storage capacity was identified in the 2003 Oak Harbor Comprehensive 
Water System Plan.   An engineering analysis of the water supply and distribution system was performed 
in 2008 to determine the best available location for a new reservoir.  The North Reservoir site was 
selected because water stored at this location will be available to the entire water service area at a 
lower cost than would be possible at other available sites. The North Reservoir is the center piece of a 
series of capital projects intended to increase water system capacity, reliability and to resolve current 
water service deficiencies. 
 
The Oak Harbor North Reservoir Project involves the construction of a 4-million gallon welded steel 
drinking water reservoir together with associated site work, storm drainage and utility installation, 
roadway,  paving and electrical power installation as described more fully in the plans and technical 
specifications for the Project.  
 
The Engineer’s estimate for the work is $4,984,541.77. 
 
Applicable Bidding Statutes and Special Provisions 
 
The following are some of the applicable bidding statutes and bidding provisions in the City’s Contract 
Documents.  
 
 



 

RCW 35A.40.210 and RCW 35.23.352 – Code City Competitive Bidding Statutes  
 
Competitive bidding and award to the lowest responsible bidder is required by the Code City public 
works competitive bidding statutes, RCW 35A.40.210 and RCW 35.23.352.     
 
RCW 35A.40.210 provides in pertinent part: 
 

Procedures for any public work or improvement for code cities shall be governed by 
RCW 35.23.352.  . . . .  
 

RCW 35.23.352 provides pertinent part: 
 

. . . . Whenever the cost of the public work or improvement, including materials, 
supplies and equipment, will exceed these figures, the same shall be done by contract. 
All such contracts shall be let at public bidding upon publication of notice calling for 
sealed bids upon the work. The notice shall be published in the official newspaper, or a 
newspaper of general circulation most likely to bring responsive bids, at least thirteen 
days prior to the last date upon which bids will be received. The notice shall generally 
state the nature of the work to be done that plans and specifications therefore shall 
then be on file in the city or town hall for public inspections, and require that bids be 
sealed and filed with the council or commission within the time specified therein. Each 
bid shall be accompanied by a bid proposal deposit in the form of a cashier's check, 
postal money order, or surety bond to the council or commission for a sum of not less 
than five percent of the amount of the bid, and no bid shall be considered unless 
accompanied by such bid proposal deposit. The council or commission of the city or 
town shall let the contract to the lowest responsible bidder or shall have power by 
resolution to reject any or all bids and to make further calls for bids in the same manner 
as the original call.  . . . . 
 

The Contract Documents reflect the statutory obligation to award to the low responsible bidder with a 
responsive bid.  The Call for Bids provides: 
 

The City of Oak Harbor expressly reserves the right to reject any or all Proposals and to 
waive minor irregularities or informalities and to Award the Project to the lowest 
responsive, responsible bidder as it best serves the interests of the City. 

 
2012 WSDOT Standard Specification Section 1-03.1, Consideration of Bids, provides: 
 

. . . .  
The right is reserved by the Contracting Agency to waive informalities in the bidding, 
accept a Proposal of the lowest responsible Bidder, reject any or all Bids, republish the 
call for Bids, revise or cancel the Work, or require the Work to be done in another way if 
the best interest of the Contracting Agency is served.  
. . . .  

 
RCW 39.04.350(1) -- Statutory Bidder Responsibility  
 



 

RCW 39.04.350(1) requires bidders meet certain minimum responsibility criteria as set forth in the 
statute.  The City included the statutory bidder responsibility criteria in Special Provisions Sections 
1-02.1.A and .B. 
 
RCW 39.04.350(2) -- Supplemental Bidder Responsibility  
 
RCW 39.04.350(2) permits the City to include relevant supplemental criteria for determining bidder 
responsibility applicable to a particular project.   Pursuant to the authority granted by RCW 
39.04.350(2), the City included supplemental bidder responsibility criteria in Special Provisions Sections 
1-02.1.C- E.      

The City prepared Special Provisions Section 1-02.1.C Relevant Experience in accordance with guidance 
provided by the Capital Projects Advisory Review Board (CPARB), a state commission operated under the 
auspices of the Washington Department of Enterprise Services, balancing the City’s interests to ensure 
that a responsible contractor builds the project with maximizing competition.  CPARB’s guidelines for 
supplemental bidder responsibility criteria state: 
 

In establishing Supplemental Bidder Responsibility Criteria, the competing interests of 
public agencies and contractors must be balanced. The public agency's interests to 
ensure that a responsible contractor builds the project must be weighed against the 
competing interest to ensure that the procurement encourages sufficient competition 
from the contracting community, without unduly restricting the pool of qualified 
bidders. Only when these two interests are balanced will the public obtain the work at 
the best price. 

 
CPARB, Suggested Guidelines for Bidder Responsibility, rev. February, 2012.   
 
Special Provisions Section 1-02.1.C.1 requires similar project experience as follows: 
 

C. Relevant Experience 
1. Demonstrate successful past experience and competence in managing 

and constructing no less than two (2) similar public works construction 
projects in the last three (3) years.  Similar projects may be those 
involving steel erection, tank installation and associated painting, site 
work, asphalt roadway and utility installation. . . . . 

 
Special Provisions Section 1-02.1.C.2 requires a list of all projects completed in the last five (5) 
years with an initial contract price of $2 million or more.  Special Provisions Section 1-02.1.C.3 requires 
information relating to the Painting Subcontractor’s financial resources, experience, qualifications and 
capacity. 
 
In addition to the relevant experience requirements in Special Provisions Section 1-02.1.C, the City 
requires information regarding prevailing wage compliance in Special Provisions Section 1-02.1.D and 
information regarding litigation / claims experience in Special Provisions Section 1-02.1.E. 
 
The Bid Advertisement, Bid Opening and Bid Results 
 



 

A bid advertisement publicly soliciting competitive bids for constructing the Project was placed in the 
Seattle Daily Journal of Commerce and Whidbey News-Times and posted to the Builders Exchange of 
Washington on-line plan center beginning January 23, 2013.   Two addenda were issued making minor 
changes in the contract documents and extending the bid opening date to April 3, 2013. 
 
On April 3, 2013 a public bid opening for the North Reservoir Project was held in the Oak Harbor Council 
Chamber.  Eight bids were received and publically opened.  The bid prices ranged from a low bid of 
$4,486,324.12 to a high bid of $5,632,706.82.  A Bid Tabulation showing the bid items, the Engineer’s 
estimate and the eight bid prices is attached at Tab A.  
 
The apparent low responsive bid was submitted by Veterans Northwest Construction, LLC of Seattle, 
Washington with a bid price of $4,486,324.12.  Veterans Northwest Construction is a general contracting 
company that generally does not self-perform specialty construction work on projects they perform.  
Veterans Northwest Construction’s general practice is to manage a team of qualified specialty 
subcontractors to perform specialty construction work and to self-perform basic site work and other 
discrete elements of the work and to directly purchase construction materials.    
 
The apparent second low responsive bid was submitted by T Bailey, Inc. of Anacortes, Washington with 
a bid price of $4,646,658.69.  T Bailey is a steel tank fabricator in addition to being a general contracting 
company.  T Bailey’s general practice is to self-perform steel fabrication, site piping and foundation work 
and subcontract other specialty work such as coatings, electrical work, and paving. 
 
The Bid Evaluation 
 
Email and Correspondence from T Bailey  
 
During bid evaluation the City received the following email and correspondence from T Bailey:    
 

1. On April 3, 2013, the City received an email from T Bailey requesting copies of all bids and 
inquiring whether Veterans Northwest Construction met the self-performance requirement 
in Special Provisions Section 1-08.1. 

 
2. On April 5, 2013, the City received a letter from T Bailey alleging that Veterans Northwest 

Construction did not meet the supplemental bidder responsibility criteria in Special 
Provisions Section 1-02.1.C.1 because it has not demonstrated experience fabricating steel 
tanks or structures within the last three years and that it “failed to verify responsibility 
criteria for each of the first tier sub-contractors as required by the bid documents.”  

 
3. On April 10, 2013, the City received a letter from T Bailey following up on their April 5, 2013 

letter and elaborating on its position that Veterans Northwest Construction did not meet 
the supplemental bidder responsibility criteria in Special Provisions Section 1-02.1.C.1. 

 
Copies of T Bailey’s email and correspondence are attached at Tab B.   
 
As discussed below, the bid evaluation included verification of the apparent low bidder’s compliance 
with the issues raised by T Bailey. 



 

 
Information Provided by Veterans Northwest Construction 
 
In addition to submitting their bid proposal and answering questions on the telephone, Veterans 
Northwest Construction provided the following documents to assist the City in its bid evaluation: 
 

1. Veterans Northwest Construction April 4, 2013 Supplemental Bidder Criteria, North 
Reservoir 
 

2. Veterans Northwest Construction April 9, 2013 letter regarding its qualifications together 
with the following Exhibits: 

 
Exhibit A -- Past Project Relevant Experience 
Exhibit B -- Project Manager and Superintendent Relevant Experience/References 
Exhibit C -- NAVFAC Past Performance Questionnaire 
 

3. Veterans Northwest Construction Section 1-08.1 compliance matrix  
 

Copies of Veterans Northwest Construction’s April 4, 2013 Supplemental Bidder Criteria, North 
Reservoir, Veterans Northwest Construction’s April 9, 2013 letter regarding their qualifications and its 
Exhibits A – C, and  Veterans Northwest Construction Section 1-08.1 compliance matrix  are attached at 
Tab C, Tab D, and Tab E, respectively.   
 
Veterans Northwest Construction General Reference Check  
 
Veterans Northwest Construction’s recent work includes Navy projects.  I contacted the three project 
management staff members at NAVFAC Northwest, the agency responsible for the three NAS Whidbey 
Island projects indentified by Veterans Northwest Construction, to confirm reference information 
provided by Veterans Northwest Construction and for their evaluation of Veterans Northwest 
Construction’s performance.    
 
All three provided very positive comments regarding the performance of Veterans Northwest 
Construction in executing the public works construction contracts.  According to the three NAVFAC 
project management staff members interviewed, Veterans Northwest Construction’s work was 
consistently performed on schedule, at the contracted price and in conformance with the plans, 
specifications, and applicable standards.  Likewise, construction site safety was competently addressed, 
and taxes and wages paid in accordance with federal, state and local law.    
 
Special Provision Section 1-08.1 Compliance  
 
Special Provision Section 1-08.1 requires at least 20% of the work to be performed by the contractor’s 
own organization: 
 

Work done by the Contractor’s own organization shall account for at least 20 percent of 
the Awarded Contract price.  Before computing this percentage, however, the 
Contractor may subtract (from the Awarded Contract price) the costs of any 
subcontracted Work on items the Contract designates as specialty items. 



 

 
The City included the 20% self-performance requirement because it believed it would encourage the 
contractor to actively administer and manage the project.  At the same time, we believe the 30% self- 
performance requirement in the WSDOT Standard Specifications unnecessarily restricted competition.  
 
I contacted Veterans Northwest Construction and requested documentation of their plan to meet the 
Special Provision’s 20% self-performance requirement.  In response to my request, Veterans Northwest 
Construction provided the City with the Section 1-08.1 compliance matrix referred to above at Tab E.  
The document is a spreadsheet cost breakdown for all bid items indicating the bid items that Veterans 
Northwest Construction would self-perform and those that would be subcontracted and demonstrating 
how Veterans Northwest Construction would self-perform 20% of their bid contract price.    
 
Based upon Veterans Northwest Construction’s Section 1-08.1 compliance matrix and my conversations 
with Veterans Northwest Construction regarding their plan for the work, I believe that Veterans 
Northwest Construction will satisfy the 20% self-performance requirements of Section 1-08.1.  
 
Special Provisions Sections 1-02.1.A and .B Statutory Responsibility Compliance 
 
Veterans Northwest Construction meets the statutory responsibility criteria in RCW 39.04.350(1) as 
required by Special Provisions Section 1-02.1.A.1-5.  At the time of bid, Veterans Northwest Construction 
had a Certificate of Registration in compliance with chapter 18.27 RCW, a current Washington Unified 
Business Identifier (UBI) number, Industrial Insurance (workers’ compensation) coverage for the bidder’s 
employees working in Washington, has not been found to be out of compliance by the Washington 
State Apprenticeship and Training Council for working apprentices out of ratio, and has not violated the 
“Off-site Prefabricated Non-Standard Project Specific Items” reporting requirements of RCW 39.04.370. 
 
 In addition, RCW 39.04.350(1) and Special Provisions Section 1-02.1.A require bidders to “verify 
[statutory] responsibility criteria for each first tier subcontractor” and require that a subcontractor of 
any tier that hires other subcontractors “verify responsibility criteria for each of its subcontractors.”    
Veterans Northwest Construction confirmed during my telephone interview that they have done so. 
 
As required by Special Provisions Section 1-02.1.B, Veterans Northwest Construction has not been 
disqualified from bidding on any public works contract under RCW 39.06.010 or 39.12.065(3). 
 
Special Provision Section 1-02.1 C.1 and C.2 Similar Project Experience    
 
Special Provision Section 1-02.1.C.1 provides in part as follows:  
 

“Demonstrate successful past experience and competence in managing and 
constructing no less than two (2) similar public works construction projects in the last 
three (3) years.  Similar projects may be those involving steel erection, tank installation 
and associated painting, site work, asphalt roadway and utility installation.” 

 
As discussed above, the City prepared Special Provisions Section 1-02.1.C.1 in accordance with guidance 
provided by CPARB on balancing the City’s interests in having a responsible contractor perform the work 
with the need to maximize competition.  The words “similar” and “may” were included in the 
supplemental responsibility specification to maintain the proper balance between ensuring that a 
responsible contractor builds the project and sufficient competition.  “Similar” was not intended to 



 

mean identical.  “May” was used to emphasize that identical project experience was not required or 
expected.  
 
The City contacted Veterans Northwest Construction regarding whether it meets the supplemental 
bidder responsibility criteria in Special Provisions Section 1-02.1.C.1 and also conducted its own 
independent evaluation based on review of Veterans Northwest Construction’s past projects, reference 
checks, and their planned specialty subcontractors. 
 
Veterans Northwest Construction responded by letter dated April 9, 2013 together with its Exhibits A – 
C.  Past project relevant experience included the following projects: 
  

1. Child Development Center at NAS Whidbey Island; 
2. Heating Oil Tank Modernizations at NAVMAG Indian Island;  
3. Refurbish Track & Field at NAS Whidbey Island;  
4. MLA Backlighting Repairs at Naval Base Kitsap, Renovate Dorms 564, 565, and 567 at Joint 

Base Lewis-McCord; and  
5. Medical/Dental Clinic Renovation at Naval Base Kitsap-Bangor.  

 
A copy of Veterans Northwest Construction’s April 9, 2013 letter together with its Exhibits A – C is 
attached as Tab D.  
 
The referenced projects provided by Veterans Northwest Construction are similar to the North Reservoir 
Project in terms of budget, scale, complexity, scheduling, management and administrative requirement.    

The Engineer’s estimate for construction of the North Reservoir Project is $4.9 M.  The construction 
costs of Veterans Northwest Construction have referenced projects that range up to $12.3 M.  Three of 
the referenced projects have construction costs that exceed Oak Harbor’s Engineer’s Estimate for the 
North Reservoir.  The budget and scale of the projects is similar.  

Veterans Northwest Construction’s experience includes projects with similar complexity, scheduling, 
management and administrative requirements.  The North Reservoir Project includes clearing and 
grading of an undeveloped site, installing piping on site to connect the reservoir to the water system, 
constructing a reinforced concrete ring foundation for the reservoir, installing a storm drainage system, 
extending electric power into the site, installing a pressure reducing valve station, construction of an 
access road, security fencing, electrical and control systems and a variety of lesser but related activities -
- in addition to a welded steel water reservoir.  All of these construction activities must be scheduled, 
coordinated and constructed in accordance with applicable permit conditions and building codes in 
order for the project to be successful.  The Child Development Center project performed by Veterans 
Northwest Construction in Oak Harbor required similarly complex and interrelated construction 
coordination, scheduling, management, and permitting and code activities.  The Child Development 
Center project site was previously undeveloped and required extensive clearing, excavation and grading, 
electric power, water, sewer and storm drainage systems were extended and constructed on the site, 
concrete foundations for the building and construction of a 31,000 square foot building incorporating 
special security features, on site solar and wind electric power generation facilities, paved access, 
parking and street improvements.  Although the primary structures differ between the two projects, the 
Child Development Center project incorporates similar items and is no less complex than the North 



 

Reservoir Project.  Veterans Northwest Construction’s other reference projects include similar 
complexity, scale, scheduling, management and administrative requirements.  

Veterans Northwest Construction’s submittal also included reference information for its proposed tank 
fabrication subcontractor, Crosno Construction, Inc., and its proposed tank painting subcontractor, 
Coatings Unlimited, Inc.  Crosno Construction, Inc. is an established specialty steel tank fabricator based 
in Arroyo Grande, California.  The documentation provided indicates that Crosno Construction meets 
experience requirements and is adequately equipped and staffed to fabricate a 4-million gallon welded 
steel tank.  A random check of references for three recent AWWA D100 compliant tank fabrication 
projects indicates that Crosno Construction has performed well on similar projects.   
 
Coatings Unlimited is an established coatings contractor based in Kent, Washington. Coatings Unlimited 
is known by the North Reservoir Project design team at the engineering consulting firm of Gray & 
Osborne to be experienced and competent at coating welded steel drinking water tanks.  As discussed 
below, the public works projects Veterans Northwest Construction has performed in the past are similar 
and the specialty subcontractors that Veterans Northwest Construction proposes meet the 
requirements for tank fabrication and tank coatings listed under Special Provisions Section 1-02.1.C.3.   
 
Based on the information provided by Veterans Northwest Construction and my investigation, I believe 
that Veterans Northwest Construction meets the past experience Supplemental Bidder Responsibility 
Criteria in Special Provisions Section 1-02.1.C.1. 
 
T Bailey’s Objections re Veterans Northwest Construction’s Experience 
 
T Bailey, in its April 10, 2013 letter, takes the position that the only way to satisfy the Supplemental 
Responsibility Criteria described in Section 1-02.1.C.1 is with “self-performance” experience.  T Bailey’s 
April 10, 2013 letter provides: 
 

“SP 1-01.3, Definitions, defines Responsible Bidder as a, "Bidder meeting the bidder 
responsibility criteria in RCW 39.04.350(1) and pursuant to RCW 39.04.350(2) the 
Supplemental Responsibility Criteria described in Section 1-02.1 Qualification of Bidders, 
as amended.  SP 1-02.1, in turn, enumerates the Qualifications of Bidder as amended to 
require "the Bidder" to "also [meet] the following supplemental bidder responsibility 
criteria (to be submitted after bidding by the apparent low bidder, and by other bidders 
upon request): 
 
C.1 Demonstrate successful past experience and competence in managing and 
constructing no less than two (2) similar public works construction projects in the last 
three (3) years. . . .” 

 
The City never intended the language to prohibit bidders from establishing responsibility with 
competent subcontractors.  Managing and hiring specialty contractors which are used to construct the 
various parts of complex public works projects is a customary and established public works construction 
industry practice.  Indeed, it would be unusual, if not unprecedented, for a public works contractor to 
self-perform all work on a complex public works project like the Oak Harbor North Reservoir Project.  
The ability to successfully subcontract with and manage a variety of specialty contractors to complete a 
complex public works project is important to the success of our project and interpreting the 



 

specification to require the Supplemental Responsibility Criteria described in Section 1-02.1 be met with 
“self-performance” would unnecessarily restrict completion.    
 
T Bailey argues that its position is supported by technical specification section 13211: 
 

To the extent there exists any question about whether it was the bidder or their 
subcontractor that is required to have such management and construction experience 
the City need look no further than Specification 13211-3.1.4, Approved Erectors.  It 
requires the erector, as opposed to the bidder, to have furnished and erected at least 
three similar reservoirs of equal and greater capacity within the last 5 years.  Clearly the 
erector has greater and different requirements than the bidder who may or may not 
also be the erector. 

 
However, technical specification section 13211 supports the opposite conclusion which is that the 
Supplemental Responsibility Criteria described in Section 1-02.1 can be satisfied with specialty 
subcontractors.  Specification Section 13211 specifically contemplates the section 13211 work being 
managed by a contractor different than the approved tank erection contractor.  Technical specification 
Section 13211, Approved Erectors, provides:  
 
 1.4 APPROVED ERECTORS 

Contractors using experienced reservoir suppliers who have furnished and erected at 
least three similar reservoirs within the last 5 years of equal or greater capacity.  A letter 
shall accompany the bid listing three such tanks, including name of owner, capacity, 
location, year completed, and telephone number of owner or owner’s consultant. 

 
Clearly the specification contemplates the work being managed by a contractor different than the 
approved tank erection contractor.    
 
It should also be noted that T Bailey did not propose to self-perform all critical elements of the work.  
 
Special Provisions Section 1-02.1.C.2 Past Projects Completed    
 
Special Provisions Section 1-02.1.C.2 provides in part as follows:  
 

“Provide a list of all projects completed in the last five (5) years with an Initial contract 
price of $2 million or more.” 
 

Veterans Northwest Construction provided the requested information with its April 9, 2013 submission.   
The information provided indicates that Veterans Northwest Construction is a responsible contractor.  
 
 
 
Special Provisions Section 1-02.1.C.3 Painting Subcontractor Experience   
 
Special Provisions Section 1-02.1.C.3 provides in part as follows:  
 

 . . . The entity performing Division 9, Section 09900 work (Painting Subcontractor) must 
possess adequate financial resources, experience, qualifications and capacity to timely 



 

and properly perform the work. Contractor will provide information relating to the 
Painting Subcontractor’s financial resources, experience, qualifications and capacity 
before award. . . . 

 
As discussed above, Veterans Northwest Construction also submitted reference information for its 
proposed tank fabrication subcontractor, Crosno Construction, Inc., and its proposed tank painting 
subcontractor, Coatings Unlimited, Inc.   Veteran Northwest Construction’s proposed tank painting 
subcontractor, Coatings Unlimited, Inc., meets the requirements of Special Provisions Section 1-02.1.C.3.  
 
Special Provisions Section 1-02.1.D Compliance History 
 
My post bid investigation revealed no instances where Veterans Northwest Construction was required 
to pay either back wages or penalties for failure to comply with any state or federal prevailing wage laws 
which would render Veterans Northwest Construction not responsible.  
 
Special Provisions Section 1-02.1.E Legal Matters 
 
My post bid investigation revealed no litigation or formal claims which would render Veterans 
Northwest Construction not responsible.  
 
Award Recommendation    
 
I recommend the City award the contract for the Oak Harbor North Reservoir Project to Veterans 
Northwest Construction as the lowest responsive and responsible bidder for the work.  Veterans 
Northwest Construction’s $4,486,324.12 bid price was $160,334.57 below the second low bid of 
$4,646,658.69.  Veterans Northwest Construction’s bid was responsive.  As discussed above, Veterans 
Northwest Construction is a responsible bidder and meets the supplemental bidder responsibility 
criteria for the Project.   
 
Please advise if there are any additional issues that you feel should be addressed in my bid evaluation 
and award recommendation.  
 
Attachments:  
 Tab A  Bid Tabulation with Engineer’s Estimate 
 Tab B  Email and correspondence received from T Bailey  

Tab C Veterans Northwest Construction’s April 4, 2013 Supplemental Bidder Criteria 
North Reservoir 

 Tab D  Veterans Northwest Construction’s April 9, 2013 letter w/ Exhibits A – C  
Tab E    Veterans Northwest Construction’s Section 1-08.1 compliance matrix  

 



 

July 2, 2013 – North Booster Station and Transmission Main 
Page 1 of 3 

 Bill No. 9.c.  
 Date: July 2, 2013    
 Subject: North Booster Station and   

Transmission Main Project – 
Consultant Contract with Gray & 
Osborne, Inc.         

   
FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director 
 Joe Stowell, City Engineer 
  
INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY: 
 
            Scott Dudley, Mayor 
            Larry Cort, City Administrator 
            Doug Merriman, Finance Director 
            Grant Weed, Interim City Attorney, as to form 
 
 
PURPOSE  
The purpose of this agenda bill is to request Council authorization to enter into a Consultant 
Agreement with the engineering consulting firm of Gray & Osborne, Inc. for design of the North 
Transmission Main and Booster Station projects in the amount of $964,100. 
  
AUTHORITY  
The Oak Harbor Municipal Code states: 
 
2.310.050 Professional service contracts. 
Contracts for professional services, including contracts for legal and consulting services, are not 
subject to the bidding requirements of Chapters 2.310 through 2.390 OHMC. The mayor or 
his/her designee shall promulgate procedures and standards for the approval of such contracts. 
Contracts for architectural and engineering services shall be awarded in accordance with 
Chapter 2.350 OHMC and Chapter 39.80 RCW. For purposes of this section, “professional 
services” are those services involving skill, education and special knowledge and where the 
work is predominately mental and intellectual, rather than physical and mechanical. The mayor 
shall establish guidelines and procedures for obtaining professional services. Professional 
service contracts in excess of $10,000 shall require approval by the city council. Contracts for 
professional services under $10,000 shall be reviewed by the finance director or the city attorney 
prior to signing to assure compliance with the Oak Harbor biannual budget, provisions of 
Chapter 2.390 OHMC and purchasing policies promulgated by the mayor. (Ord. 1629 § 1, 2012; 
Ord. 1470 § 8, 2006). 
 
FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION 
Funds Required:              $964,100  
Appropriation Source:  Water Fund 

 

City of Oak Harbor 
City Council Agenda Bill 
 

http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=39.80


 

July 2, 2013 – North Booster Station and Transmission Main 
Page 2 of 3 

 
SUMMARY STATEMENT 
A comprehensive engineering analysis of the Oak Harbor Water Utility storage and distribution 
system was performed during the process of selecting the site for the North Reservoir.  In 
addition to determining the best available site for the reservoir, the analysis also revealed a 
significant water pressure deficiency and provided a general plan to efficiently provide water 
service to the community now and into the future.   
 
In the same time frame that the reservoir site analysis was developed, the Navy initiated 
reconstruction of the water distribution system serving Ault Field and the transmission main 
which links Ault Field with Crescent Harbor housing area, Victory housing, the Seaplane Base 
and Maylor Point housing.  The existing Navy transmission main extends along Goldie Street 
and through the northeast Oak Harbor neighborhood and is at the end of its useful life. 
 
City and Navy staff realized that both the City and Navy needed a new main to and through 
northeast Oak Harbor and that there would be substantial cost savings available to both agencies 
by installing one facility with the capacity to serve the needs of both systems rather than two 
independent parallel mains. 
 
The City will benefit from the project by improving the water system pressure and flow to a 
portion of the northeast Oak Harbor neighborhood bounded by NE O’Leary Street, NE 16th 
Avenue, NE Regatta Drive and NE 6th Avenue.  Currently, the area does not have sufficient 
water pressure to meet standards set by the Washington State Department of Health during fire 
flow conditions.  The only available solution for providing adequate water pressure during fire 
flow conditions to all parts of the City is installation of a booster pump station capable of 
sustaining pressure under all flow conditions and connection of that source to the rest of the 
water system through a new transmission main. 
 
To satisfy this need, the City has been strategically phasing water system improvement projects 
over the past several years.  The Gun Club Road Water Mains was the first evidence of this work 
with the North Reservoir following close behind and currently under construction.  The North 
Booster Station and Transmission Main project will round out the phases to improve flow in the 
northeast section of town.  The original plan was to implement the North Booster Station 
separate of the North Transmission Main.  This is reflected in the 2013-2014 budget with 
$75,000 set aside in 2013 for design of the booster station and another $1,000,000 in 2014 for 
construction.  The North Transmission Main project was anticipated to be funded in the 2015-
2016 budget. 
 
Funding for the Navy transmission main is currently available and the Navy has shown interest 
in partnering with the City for a joint project which will reduce costs to both parties.  As such, 
staff is proposing to accelerate the schedule for the City’s transmission main project and combine 
it with the North Booster Station project. 
 
 



 

July 2, 2013 – North Booster Station and Transmission Main 
Page 3 of 3 

The proposed contract with Gray and Osborne will include the design of the North Booster 
Station as well as the design of the North Transmission Main that will have capacity to meet the 
City’s needs as well as deliver an adequate supply of water to the Seaplane Base.  One of the first 
tasks we have asked Gray and Osborne to complete is an analysis of the cost sharing.  For 
example, the cost share could be based on water system demand.  We expect this analysis to be 
completed early in the project and independent of the design process.  The information gained 
from this analysis will be used to negotiate cost sharing with the Navy. 
 
Staff would like to reallocate $1,000,000 from construction of the North Booster Station to 
design of the North Transmission Main.  Further funding analysis will occur once a cost share 
has been developed and negotiated with the Navy. 
 
If a cost share agreement cannot be reached with the Navy, the design of the North Booster 
Station and Transmission Main can be easily modified to meet the City’s needs. 
 
In an effort to better capture all of the costs associated with the project, a table of planning level 
estimate of costs has been attached as Table 1.   
 
The engineering consulting firm of Gray & Osborne, Inc. was selected through a process of 
qualification review as the most qualified firm to provide the necessary engineering services for 
these projects. 
 
PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS 
January 2, 2013 – City Council authorized staff to solicit statements of qualifications from 
engineering consulting firms for design of a booster pump station, water main and connection 
points to the Navy water system for the City of Oak Harbor water utility. 
 
April 2, 2013 – Staff reported the results of the consultant selection process for design of the 
North Booster Station and Transmission Main and City Council authorized staff to negotiate a 
scope of services and fee with the selected consultant. 
 
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP 
May 30, 2013 – Council was presented with an update on the negotiations for scope of services 
with Gray and Osborne. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
A motion authorizing execution of a Consultant Agreement with the engineering consulting firm 
of Gray & Osborne, Inc. for design of the North Booster Station and North Transmission Main 
Projects in an amount not to exceed $964,100. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Figure 1 – Vicinity Map 
Table 1 – Estimated Costs 
Consultant Agreement 





Estimated Costs

North Booster 

Station %

North Tranmission 

Main %

Construction 2,100,000$            5,700,000$            

Engineering

Design 149,900$               7% 814,200$               14%

Construction 42,000$                 2% 114,000$               2%

Geotechnical * -$                        0% -$                        0%

Survey

Design * -$                        0% -$                        0%

Construction 42,000$                 2% 114,000$               2%

Materials Testing 21,000$                 1% 57,000$                 1%

Archaeology ** -$                        0% 570,000$               10%

Subtotal 2,354,900$            12% 7,369,200$            29%

Contingency 470,980$               20% 1,473,840$            20%

Subtotal 2,825,880$            8,843,040$            

Total 11,668,920$         

* included in design contract

** booster station archaeology completed w/North Reservoir

6/20/2013

North Booster Station and Transmission Main
Table 1














































































































































	Agenda for July 2, 2013
	Proclamation for  Christmas in July
	4.a. Minutes of June 18, 2013
	4.b. Accounts Payable Vouchers
	Voucher Listing

	4.c. Introduction - Amending Section 2.250.030 OHMC
	Commission Minutes
	Letter from Mayor
	Draft Ordinance 1662

	4.d. Marina Recreational Equipment Operation
	Attachments

	4.e. Island County Youth Commission 
	Interlocal Agreement
	Partnership Documents

	4.f. Workshop Meeting Dates
	6.a. Lodging Tax Funding Request
	Resolution 13-14

	7.a. & b. 2012 International Building and Fire Code
	Ordinance 1660
	Ordinance 1661

	9.a. Termination of C-Dock Roof Repair
	Memorandum
	Resolution 13-16

	9.b. North Reservoir Hedeen & Caditz Amendment
	Amendment No. 1
	Letter from T Bailey Inc.
	Memo from Peterschmidt

	9.c. North Booster Station and Transmisssion Main
	Site Map
	Estimated Costs
	Consultant Agreement





